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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

DennNis DauGgaaArD, GOVERNOR

May 20, 2011

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE LEGISLATURE AND CITIZENS OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

It is my pleasure to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report covering operations for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. Since FY2010 was not during my term as Governor of this great
state, I commend Governor Rounds for his work in maintaining a solid financial foundation for
South Dakota. I pledge my continued effort toward maintaining this sound financial condition.

This is our 24™ Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The report is prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and includes all agencies of state government and
reporting entities for which the state has oversight responsibilities. Like previous reports, this
report presents to you and the financial community the sound financial condition of South Dakota.

Even in these challenging economic times, South Dakota’s economy continues to outperform the
national economy in many areas. Recent data supports this, as the state’s average annual income
growth rate from 2006 through 2010 was above the national average. In addition, the nonfarm
employment growth rate in South Dakota has exceeded the national growth rate from 2006 through
2010. Although the unemployment rate in South Dakota remains elevated due to the economic
recession, it was one of the lowest in the nation through fiscal year 2010, and remains that way
today.

As the Governor of this great state, I am committed to four financial priorities:
e Increasing job growth, economic development, and visitor spending,
e Taking care of those who cannot take care of themselves,
e Providing our children with a quality education, and
e Protecting our society from those who would do us harm.

South Dakota continues to operate within our means and to provide these basic services to our
citizens, as we have since statehood in 1889.

Sincerely,

Dennis Daugaard
Governor

STATE CAPITOL e 500 EAST CAPITOL e PIERRE, SOUTH DAKOTA e 57501-5070 ¢ 605-773-3212
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DEPARTMENT OF EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
BUREAU OF FINANCE AND MANAGEMENT

500 East Capitol Ave. ® Pierre, South Dakota 57501-5070 ® Voice: (605) 773-3411 ® Fax: (605) 773-4711

TO THE HONORABLE DENNIS M. DAUGAARD, GOVERNOR OF SOUTH DAKOTA

MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH DAKOTA LEGISLATURE

It is my privilege to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the operation of the State of
South Dakota (herein after referred to as the State) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Report. This report is prepared by the Bureau of Finance and Management and submitted as required by South
Dakota Codified Law 4-4-6. The financial statements contained in the CAFR are prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable to government as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the State’s management. We believe the
information, as presented, is accurate in all material respects and that all disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an adequate understanding of the State’s financial affairs have been included.

The CAFR is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial, and Statistical. The Introductory Section, which
provides information on the general contents of the report, contains this letter of transmittal, a list of principal State
officials, fiscal year 2010 functions of State government, and an organizational chart of State government. The
Financial Section includes the Independent Auditor's Report on the Basic Financial Statements; Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) that provides an introduction, overview, and analysis to the “Basic Financial
Statements”; the Basic Financial Statements that present the government-wide financial statements, fund financial
statements, notes to the Basic Financial Statements; Required Supplementary Information that includes budgetary
comparison schedules; and, Other Supplemental Information that includes combining financial statements and
schedules for individual funds. The Statistical Section includes financial trends, revenue capacity, debt capacity,
demographic, economic, and operating information.

Internal Controls. Management of the State is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to
ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. The Bureau of Finance and Management is able to monitor revenues and expenditures on a weekly
basis to detect excess expenditures, or shortfalls in revenues. As required by State statute, the State Auditor, an
elected official, shall be presented all accounts and claims against the State to examine and adjust the same. Also,
as required by State statute, the State Treasurer, an elected official, shall have charge of, and safely keep, all
public moneys which shall be paid into the State treasury, and pay out the same as directed by law. The
Department of Revenue periodically audits retail establishments to assure their payment of sales and excise taxes.
The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives
are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefit likely to be derived, and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgements by
management.

Independent Auditors. The South Dakota Department of Legislative Audit, a division of the legislative branch of
State government, performs the audit of South Dakota’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The audit is
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
Government Auditing Standards (GAS) issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The Independent
Auditor’s Report (issued by the Department of Legislative Audit) includes an expression of opinion on the financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of South Dakota as of June 30,
2010 and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the fiscal year then
ended.



In conjunction with the audit of the State’s financial statements, the Department of Legislative Audit also performs
audits of major federal and state programs and issues an opinion on the State’s compliance with the requirements
of major federal programs. The results of the audit of federal and state programs are presented in the South
Dakota Single Audit Report.

Internal control procedures are evaluated on an annual basis by the Department of Legislative Audit to provide
reasonable assurance for the safeguarding of the State’s assets and to provide reasonable assurance of proper
recording of financial transactions used to prepare this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). GAAP requires that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of MD&A. The letter
of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The State’s MD&A can
be found immediately following the Independent Auditor’'s Report.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Structure. The State entered the Union on November 2, 1889 as the 39" or 40" state (with its twin, North Dakota).
South Dakota has 75,885 square miles of land and a population estimated to be 0.8 million. The State has a strong
governor-bicameral legislative form of government. The Governor may be elected for two consecutive four-year
terms. The Governor appoints all heads of state departments who serve at the pleasure of the Governor. The
State Legislature is composed of a 35-member Senate and a 70-member House of Representatives. Legislators
are elected for two-year terms and limited to four consecutive terms for the same seat.

Services. State government provides services to citizens that include support for public education, public
assistance and Medicaid, health and human services, public safety, building and maintaining state highways,
agricultural and environmental services, community and economic development, and other general government
services.

Budget Process. State law requires annual preparation and approval of the State's budget. The Governor
presents the annual budget to the State Legislature by the first Tuesday after the first Monday in December. The
State Legislature is required to approve a budget by the end of the legislative session. There is no provision for a
continuing resolution. The State Constitution requires that the State budget be balanced. Accumulated General
Fund balances may be drawn down to balance an annual budget, as long as the General Fund balance remains
positive. The Governor has the power to veto individual line items in the budget approved by the State Legislature.
The State budget must remain in balance through the end of the fiscal year. Accordingly, state departments cannot
encumber more funds than they have been authorized to spend. During the year, the Governor may authorize
intradepartmental transfers of funds, as long as total appropriation levels are not exceeded.

The State's largest sources of General Fund revenues are sales and service taxes, business taxes and lottery
proceeds. The largest categories of General Fund expenditures are general bill expenditures for state aid to
primary and secondary education; property tax relief payments made by the State to local government units
through state aid to education; the State’s share of the cost of Medicaid, corrections and higher education;
operation, maintenance and improvement of facilities for state government; and, state salaries.

State Reporting Entity. The State’s reporting entity reflected in the CAFR, which is described more fully in the
Notes to the Financial Statements, conforms to the requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity. The accounting and reporting principles contained in Statement No. 14 are based primarily on
the fundamental concept that publicly elected officials are accountable to their constituents. Further, Statement
No. 14 provides that the financial statements should emphasize the primary government and permit financial
statement users to distinguish between the primary government and its component units. Under GASB
Statement No. 39, “Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units”, individually significant
legally separate tax-exempt organizations are included as component units if their resources are for the direct
benefit of the State and the State can access those resources. Consequently, the transmittal letter, MD&A, and
the basic financial statements focus on the primary government and its activities. Although information
pertaining to the discretely presented component units is provided, their separately issued financial statements,
excluding Higher Education, should be read to obtain a complete overview of their financial position.



Risk Management. The Risk Management Program was created to protect the assets and resources of the
State through efficient control and financing of risks inherent in government operations by ensuring a safe
environment for State employees and the general public. Responsibilities include ensuring that exposures to
financial loss are discovered and handled appropriately, minimizing the possible interruption of vital public
services, and reducing the costs and consequences of accidents through effective loss control management.

Housed with the Risk Management Program is the Public Entity Pool for Liability (PEPL), a self-insurance
program created to cover risks associated with automobile liability, and general tort liability (including public
officials, errors, and omissions liability; medical malpractice liability; law enforcement liability; and, products
liability).

Further information on the State’s risk management activities can be found in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Cash Management. The South Dakota Investment Council was established by the State Legislature in 1971 and
became operational on July 1, 1972. The Investment Council is responsible for the investment management for the
assets of the Cash Flow Fund, the South Dakota Retirement System, South Dakota Cement Plant Retirement
Fund, School and Public Lands, Dakota Cement Trust Fund, Education Enhancement Trust Fund, and Health
Care Trust Fund.

Total investment income for all funds invested by the Investment Council was $1.2 billion for fiscal year 2010.
Income for the most recent five years totaled $1.4 billion and, since inception, has exceeded $8.9 billion. The
Investment Council has grown from $133.0 million in assets under management at the end of its first year to $8.3
billion at June 30, 2010.

Investment Council management of the Cash Flow Fund portfolio resulted in earnings this year of $48.3 million, a
yield of 4.94%. The Cash Flow Portfolio has earned taxpayers $975.4 million over the past 38 years.

The South Dakota Retirement System’s assets have returned 8.9% for the past 37 years (since inception of the
Council’'s management responsibilities for SDRS). This performance has placed the Council in the top one
percentile against other state pension funds.

Cash management and investments are discussed more fully in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Lottery. The South Dakota Lottery Fund was created during the 1987 legislative session to market instant
scratch games. Video lottery was authorized during the 1989 legislative session and operations commenced in
October 1989. Legislative approval to participate in a multi-state lotto game was given during the 1990
legislative session. That same year, the State joined the Multi-State Lottery Association (MUSL), a consortium of
32 lottery jurisdictions that currently offer the Powerball game. The purpose of the lottery is to provide additional
monies to fund vital public programs and projects, and as of June 30, 2010, $1.93 billion has been generated to
fund many public programs and projects. Lottery provided $119.9 million income (before transfers) during fiscal
year 2010.

Retirement System. The South Dakota Retirement System is the largest of the defined benefit plans for which
the State is responsible for providing funding.

The South Dakota Retirement System provides retirement benefits for State employees and those employees of
local governments that participate in the system. Employers and employees contribute equal amounts in the form
of a percentage of employee compensation.

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a percent of covered payroll went from 16.2% in 2001 to 18.3% in 2010.
The funding ratio decreased from 96.4% in 2001 to 96.3% in 2010. The funding ratio is the ratio of the actuarial
value of the assets of the system to the actuarial accrued liabilities of the system as of the date of calculation. In
fiscal year 2010, SDRS experienced an 18.7% market return, significantly more than the assumed rate of return of
7.75%.

Plan assets at fair value in 2010 were $6.5 billion compared to plan assets in 2001 of $4.9 billion.



The assets of the system are valued at their fair value. The system is in full compliance with the standards of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board and has received the Government Finance Officers Association’s
(GFOA) Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the last fifteen years. The system is
subject to an annual actuarial valuation and annual audit performed by an independent audit firm.

Additional information on the State’s retirement plans can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Health and Life Insurance Benefits. The State (rather than an insurance carrier) assumes substantially all risk
associated with claims of covered public employees for health insurance and life insurance benefits. However, an
insurance carrier provides claims administration services for health insurance. The Group Insurance Program
within the Bureau of Personnel was established to administer and improve group health, life and the flexible benefit
plans for state employees and their dependents. The program provides for payment of benefits to eligible
claimants in the most efficient and cost effective manner. Premiums are charged to state funds for all covered
employees, while employees share in the costs of co-pays, deductibles and dependent costs.

Additional information on the State’s health and life insurance benefits can be found in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Employment growth is an important indicator of the state’s economic health. Although the national economic
recession has had a negative impact on employment in recent years, South Dakota continues to outperform the
national economy in terms of nonfarm employment growth. South Dakota nonfarm employment growth was
2.0% in 2007, 1.2% in 2008, -1.9% in 2009 and -0.2% in 2010. United States nonfarm employment growth was
1.1% in 2007, -0.6% in 2008, -4.4% in 2009 and -0.7% in 2010.

In fiscal year 2010 (July 2009 — June 2010), nonfarm employment in South Dakota declined 1.6% compared to
the national growth rate of -3.1% over the same time period. This was the ninth straight fiscal year that the
South Dakota job market performed better than the United States. Sectors that experienced growth in fiscal year
2010 in South Dakota included education and health services and government. Sectors that were most
impacted by the recession in fiscal year 2010, and thus experienced declines, include manufacturing; mining,
logging, construction; and financial activities.

The unemployment rate in South Dakota continued to remain one of the lowest in the nation during fiscal year
2010 even while recovering from a severe national recession. In June of 2010, South Dakota’s unemployment
rate was 4.7%, less than half the U.S. unemployment rate of 9.5% for the same month.

Income growth is another important indicator of the state’s economic health. In calendar year 2010 which is the
most recent annual data that is available, South Dakota’s personal income grew 1.5%. From 2006 through
2010, South Dakota’s average personal income growth rate was 4.4% which ranked 5™ in the nation over this
time period. This was higher than the national growth rate of 2.7% and was the second highest in the seven
state Plains Region. The other Plains Region states of lowa, Kansas, Minnesota, Missouri, Nebraska, and North
Dakota experienced average income growth rates of 3.8%, 3.6%, 2.5%, 2.8%, 3.5%, and 6.3%, respectively,
over the same time period.

In addition to employment and income growth, a healthy agriculture sector has helped the state during these
challenging economic times. Both 2009 and 2010 were strong years for crop production in South Dakota which
helped stabilize the State’s economy during and after the national economic recession. The value of all principal
crops produced in South Dakota in 2010 totaled $6.20 billion, 16% higher than the $5.37 billion value of 2009
crops. The increase in value is due to increases in the value of corn for grain, soybeans and wheat produced in
2010. The 2010 value of crops produced in South Dakota represents the highest crop value since the series
began in 1969.

The long term outlook for South Dakota’s economy is cautiously optimistic as the state continues to recover
from the national economic recession. As of February 2011, South Dakota nonfarm employment levels were
4,600 jobs or 1.2% higher when compared to February of 2010. In comparison, the U.S. economy gained 1.3
million jobs or 1.0% growth over the same time period. South Dakota's economy is expected to continue to
recover and grow in 2011 and 2012 as the State continues to boast one of the lowest state per capita taxes in
the nation. The state’s business friendly environment combined with a healthy farm economy will help South
Dakota’s economy grow in the future.



MAJOR INITIATIVES

In January 2011 Governor Dennis Daugaard, the previous Lieutenant Governor, succeeded the term limited
Governor M. Michael Rounds as Governor. Under the new Administration, the State continues focus on
increasing job growth, economic development and visitor spending, taking care of those who cannot take care of
themselves, providing our children with a quality education, and protecting our society from those who would do
us harm. Recently, the state has stepped up efforts at creating new jobs, has established a new Department of
Tribal Relations, and has convened a Medicaid study group, made up of legislators, providers, and others
affected by the rapidly growing costs of the state's Medicaid program.

Listed below are some of the major initiatives the State has implemented in recent years in an effort to
accomplish our goals:

Governor’s Large Project Development Fund. Created in 1991, the Large Project Tax Refund Program is
currently being used to lure large businesses to South Dakota. This program provides incentives to new and
expanding businesses in South Dakota by refunding a portion of sales, use and contractors’ excise taxes to any
business with construction projects that meet the requirements of the program. This program has encouraged
the construction of 46 completed projects, with more underway and created thousands of jobs in our state.
However this program is set to expire at the end of 2012.

In 2011 the Legislature created the Governor's Large Project Development Fund to replace the Large Project
Tax Refund Program when it expires. This new program no longer refunds a portion of sales, use and
contractors’ excise taxes, but instead allocates 22% of the annual contractors’ excise tax revenues into the
Large Project Development Fund. This fund is then used to provide front-end economic development incentives
to targeted businesses that are looking to develop or expand in South Dakota. This new program gives the State
more flexibility to recruit businesses while providing savings to the General Fund.

Science and Lab Facilities Upgrade. In July 2008, $73.9 million of revenue bonds were issued to finance
upgrades in science facilities and laboratories on public university campuses. These upgrades support South
Dakota’s research initiative and to provide contemporary space for teaching. The upgraded included a new
science building, a new paleontology building, an addition to an existing chemistry and bio engineering building
and to complete renovations and upgrades of existing buildings at all six University campuses. All projects were
completed in 2010.

Workforce 2025. \Workforce 2025 is a group of innovative initiatives which focus on providing a competent and
qualified workforce in South Dakota to allow for economic growth and expansion. The goal of this initiative is to
respond to workforce challenges by engaging businesses, promoting education, and enhancing the state’s
workforce investment system.

The Departments of Labor, Tourism and State Development, Education, and the Board of Regents have
partnered to develop five innovative initiatives.

¢ Dakota Roots is recruiting individuals to South Dakota by connecting them to career opportunities with
the state’s leading businesses. Companies interested in relocating or expanding also can receive
assistance.

e Live Dakota is retaining current South Dakotans by educating them about the rewarding career
opportunities in-state and the ability to get on the career fast track.

e Grow Dakota is preparing students for tomorrow’s workforce through the Department of Education, the
State’s four technical institutes, the Department of Labor, and the Board of Regents.

o Dakota Seeds is matching businesses to potential future employees through internships and
assistantships.

e Build Dakota is developing solutions to immediate, intermediate and long-term workforce challenges
facing industries statewide while being responsive to economic impacts. Industry sectors of focus
include Health Care, Energy, Manufacturing, Financial Services, and Construction Trades.

2010 Research Centers. In the past few years the State of South Dakota has invested $21.5 million into the
2010 Research Initiative. This Initiative provided seed funding for nationally competitive research centers within
the Regental system in collaboration with private sector partners. The Centers are focused on commercialization



in addition to becoming self-sustaining through the acquisition of grant and other external funding. The research
centers are:

e Center for Infectious Disease Research and Vaccinology, South Dakota State University Department of
Veterinary Science in collaboration with the University of South Dakota School of Medicine

e South Dakota Signal Transduction Center, University of South Dakota Sanford Research Institute

e Center for the Research and Development of Light-Activated Materials, University of South Dakota
Department of Chemistry in collaboration with South Dakota State University, Department of Chemistry,
University of South Dakota School of Medicine and Avera Research Institute

e Center for Bioprocessing Research and Development, South Dakota School of Mines and Technology
Department of Chemical and Biological Engineering, and South Dakota State University Department of
Biology/Microbiology

e Center of Excellence for Drought Tolerance Biotechnology, South Dakota State University in
collaboration with the South Dakota seed industry

¢ National Center for the Protection of the Financial Infrastructure, Dakota State University

e Center for Detecting Rare Physics Processes with Ultra-Low Background Experiments, University of
South Dakota and Sanford Laboratory at Homestake

e Center for Biological Control and Analysis by Applied Photonics, South Dakota State University,
Department of Chemistry

¢ Translational Cancer Research Center, South Dakota State University and Sanford Research Institute

e Repair, Refurbish, and Return to Service Applied Research Center, South Dakota School of Mines and
Technology.

Sanford Underground Science and Engineering Laboratory (SUSEL/DUSEL). In 2007 the National Science
foundation selected the Sanford Underground Laboratory (SUSEL), owned by the South Dakota Science and
Technology Authority as the site for a Deep Underground Science and Engineering Laboratory (DUSEL). The
National Science Board awarded $80 million dollars in grants to develop the design in cooperation with the
Department of Energy who is also interested in conducting underground experiments. The SDSTA has been
operating the facility funded by the State of South Dakota and a gift from T. Denny Sanford, but will run out of
funding by June 2011. In December of 2010 the National Science Board decided not to fund future operations,
as they did not feel funding facilities was within their mission. The Department of Energy is currently assessing
their options, and has requested funding in the DOE FY2012 budget to fund operations of the Sanford
Underground Laboratory. If their assessment is favorable, the DOE would fund operations in the future. The
National Science Foundation did award a grant of $4 million dollars to operate the facility from June through
September to allow the DOE to complete their assessment.

High School 2025. The High School 2025 Initiative (HS2025) provides a framework to design a student-
focused educational experience that will prepare students to accomplish their career goals and be successful in
a global society.

The framework is designed around the four R’s: relevance, relationships, rigor, and results. Through research,
these four R’s have been shown to produce positive results for students.

e Relationships. In order to be successful, students need to feel safe, respected and cared about. They
need to connect with others.

e Relevance. In order to be engaged and willing to learn, students need to understand the connection
between their daily studies and the rest of their lives.



Rigor. In order to be prepared for postsecondary education, students need to be challenged
academically.

Results. If schools provide a rigorous and relevant curriculum and connections with adults, educational
outcomes should follow.

Other Education Initiatives. South Dakota has taken a proactive role in assembling a variety of learning
opportunities and advanced education methods. Recent initiatives include:

South Dakota Virtual School offers a clearinghouse of distance learning high school courses.

South Dakota INCENTIVESplus is a financial incentive system funded by the U.S. Department of
Education that targets educators in high-need schools in mainly rural areas. It links performance and
teacher pay and offers incentives to schools and individuals that are able to improve student
performance.

Library Development is a program in which the South Dakota State Library offers a "virtual library"
through its online databases.

Technical Institutes. South Dakota’s four technical institutes strive to be leaders in educational
excellence and innovation, enabling our workforce to capitalize on the emerging technologies of the
21st century and creating economic development solutions to help South Dakota compete in the global
marketplace.

South Dakota Partnership for Teacher Quality is a grant program funded by the U.S. Department of
Education designed to increase student achievement in K-12 schools by developing highly qualified
teachers.

Indian Education. South Dakota experiences some achievement gaps between Native American
students and non-Native American students in both the reading and math curricula areas. With funding
help from the U.S. Department of Education, the State has implemented five specific programs
designed to reduce those achievement gaps. These programs include:

GEAR UP South Dakota

I LEAD

South Dakota College Access Challenge Grant
Core Concepts Planning Grant

Indian Demonstration Grant
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427 SOUTH CHAPELLE
C/0 500 EAST CAPITOL
PIERRE SD 57501-5070

(605)773-3595
FAX(605)773-6454

MARTIN L. GUINDON, CPA
AUDITOR GENERAL

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Dennis Daugaard
Governor of South Dakota

and

Members of the Legislature
State of South Dakota

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of South Dakota as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the State’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the State's management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Unemployment Insurance Fund, the South Dakota Retirement
System, the South Dakota Housing Authority and certain foundations of Higher Education. Those
financial statements reflect total assets and revenue and additions of the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, and the aggregate remaining fund information
as follows:

Percent of Percent of Total
Total Assets Revenues/Additions

Government-wide financial statements:
Business-type activities:
Unemployment Insurance Fund 2.9% 30.2%
Fund financial statements:
Aggregate discretely presented component units:

South Dakota Housing Authority 62.9% 17.5%

Foundations of Higher Education 9.6% 9.2%
Aggregate remaining fund information:

Unemployment Insurance Fund 2% 2.8%

South Dakota Retirement System 84.2% 34.1%

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those funds and entities, is based
on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
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plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other
auditors provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of South Dakota,
as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 20,
2011, on our consideration of the State of South Dakota’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should
be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The accompanying management discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison schedule as
listed in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Government Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the State of South Dakota’s basic financial statements. The introductory
section and supplementary information, such as the combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements and the statistical section as listed in the table of contents, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and
statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Martin L. Guindon, CPA
Auditor General

May 20, 2011
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a discussion and analysis of the state of South Dakota’s (herein after referred to as the State)
financial performance and position, providing an overview of the State’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the Introductory Section of this
report and with the State’s financial statements that follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide

Total assets of the State exceeded its total liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $4.7 billion
(reported as net assets), an increase of $288.8 million from the previous year. Certain resources within
the total net assets balance have restrictions and internally imposed limitations that are discussed within
the Government-Wide Financial Analysis section of this document. Component units reported net assets
of $1.4 billion, an increase of $119.1 million from the previous year.

Fund Leve/

At the close of the fiscal year, the State’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $1.4 billion, with $0.5 billion reported as unreserved fund balance and the remaining amount of $0.9
billion reserved for specific purposes (such as encumbrances, inventories, debt service, school
perpetuity, noncurrent assets, Transportation Infrastructure Bank Projects, and funds held as permanent
investments). Certain resources within the $0.5 billion unreserved fund balance have internally imposed
limitations that are discussed throughout the Financial Analysis of the State’s Funds section of this
document. At the end of the fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $134.0
million. $43.4 million of the unreserved fund balance was designated as budget reserve only to be used
to address emergency situations, without having to raise taxes or cut spending, which are commonly
referred to by management as the budget reserve. The remaining balance is reported as unreserved
undesignated fund balance ($90.6 million). Although this amount is unreserved undesignated, it should
be noted certain resources within this balance have additional limitations imposed upon it. Internally
imposed limitations include, but may not be limited to the following:

» $27.2 million represents tax revenue that was received in FY10, recognized in the General Fund
in FY10, but not distributed to the General Fund until FY11 for purposes of meeting the State’s
ongoing obligations to the citizens and creditors for the next fiscal year.

> $24.4 million is not part of cash and cash equivalents, but rather a net effect of receivables and
other assets in excess of liabilities and/or commitments.

» $9.4 million was previously approved and appropriated via past legislative actions to fund
Specials and/or Maintenance and Repairs Legislative Acts that will require usage of current
state resources.

» $15.5 million represents other legislative carryovers to be used in the next fiscal year.

Proprietary funds reported net assets at year-end of $482.3 million, an increase of $44.2 million during
the year.

Long-Term Debt

The primary government’s total long-term debt (Revenue Bonds, Trust Certificates and Capital Leases)
as of June 30, 2010, totaled $433.6 million, a decrease of $32.1 million from the last fiscal year-end.
The decrease represents the net difference between new issuances, payments and refundings of
outstanding debt.
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e During the fiscal year, the South Dakota Building Authority did not issue any Revenue Bonds for
Governmental Activities. The State incurred no new long-term general indebtedness under Business
Type Activities. The South Dakota Building Authority issued $13.6 million in Taxable Revenue Bonds
(Build America Bond) for Higher Education (a discretely presented component unit).

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the State’s basic financial statements.
The State’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial
statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
required supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements (Reporting the State as a Whole)

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the State’s
finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The statements provide both short-term and long-term
information about the State’s financial position that aids in assessing the State’s economic condition at the end
of the fiscal year. These statements include all nonfiduciary assets and liabilities, using the flow of economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The current year's revenues and expenses
are taken into account, regardless of when cash is received or paid. The government-wide financial statements
include two statements:

e The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the State’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as “net assets.” Over time, increases and decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the State is improving or
deteriorating.

e The Statement of Activities presents information depicting how the State’'s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows
in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both the statement of net assets and the statement of activities segregate the activities of the State into three
types:

e Governmental Activities. The governmental activities of the State include general government;
education — elementary, secondary and vocational schools; education — state support to higher
education; health, human and social services; law, justice, public protection and regulation; agriculture
and natural resources; economic resources; transportation; intergovernmental — payments to school
districts; intergovernmental — revenue sharing; unallocated interest expense; and, unallocated
depreciation. Taxes, fees, unrestricted investment earnings, and intergovernmental revenues (federal
grants) finance most of the costs of these activities.

e Business-type Activities. The State charges fees to customers to help cover all or most of the
costs of certain services it provides. The Lottery Fund is an example of a business-type activity.
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o Discretely Presented Component Units. Component units are legally separate
organizations for which the State is financially accountable, or the nature and significance of the unit's
relationship with the State is such that exclusion of the unit would cause the State’s financial statements
to be misleading, or incomplete. The following entities are included in the component unit columns of
the State’s government-wide financial statements:

Higher Education

Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP)
South Dakota Housing Development Authority

South Dakota Economic Development Finance Authority
Value Added Finance Authority

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority

ASANENENENEN

Other component units are blended and reported as part of primary government or considered related
organizations and not reported in these financial statements. For additional information regarding component
units, refer the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The State, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Some funds are required by law,
while others are established internally to maintain control over a particular activity. All funds of the State can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. It is important to note
that these categories use different accounting approaches and should be interpreted differently.

e Governmental Funds. Most of the State’s basic services are reported in the governmental funds,
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are
available for future spending. The governmental fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the State’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental
fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent
in the near future to finance the State’s programs. These funds are reported using modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.
Governmental funds include the General Fund and special revenue, capital projects, debt service, and
permanent funds.

Since the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the State’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities. These reconciliations are presented on the
page immediately following each governmental fund’s financial statement.

The State maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Transportation Fund, Social Services Federal
Fund, Dakota Cement Trust Fund, and Education Enhancement Trust Fund, which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for some nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.
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o Proprietary Funds. Proprietary funds include: (1) enterprise funds and (2) internal service funds.
These funds account for the State’s activities that operate much like private sector businesses. Like the
government-wide financial statements, proprietary fund statements are presented using the full accrual
basis of accounting.

1. Enterprise funds (e.g., Lottery Fund) are used to account for activities that largely involve
customers outside of state government, and are the same functions reported as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements.

2. Internal service funds (e.g., Fleet and Travel Management) are used to account for activities
that largely involve other state agencies. The internal service fund activities are consolidated
with the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statement because those
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type activities.

The State maintains several individual proprietary funds, of which the following three are considered
major funds: Lottery Fund, Clean Water State Revolving Fund, and Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund. These three proprietary funds are presented separately in the proprietary funds statement of net
assets and statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets. Information from the
remaining funds is combined into two separate, aggregated columns by proprietary fund type. Individual
fund data for some nonmajor proprietary funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

e Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds (e.g., South Dakota Retirement System) are used to report
activities when the State acts as a trustee or fiduciary to hold resources for the benefit of parties outside
state government. The full accrual basis of accounting is used for fiduciary funds and is similar to the
accounting used for proprietary funds. The government-wide financial statements exclude fiduciary fund
activities and balances because these assets are restricted in purpose and cannot be used by the State
to finance operations.

The State’s fiduciary funds include pension trust funds, private purpose trust funds, and agency funds.
Individual fund data for some of the fiduciary funds is included in the combining financial statements
elsewhere in this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements and provide additional
narrative and financial information essential to fully understand the data provided in the government-wide
financial statements and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements are located
immediately following the fiduciary funds’ financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information. This section
includes a Budgetary Comparison Schedule, and related notes, for the General Fund and for each major special
revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. The only special revenue funds that fit this criterion are
the Transportation Fund and the Social Services Federal Fund.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presents both the original and the final appropriated budgets for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2010. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule also lists the actual outflows and balances
stated on a budgetary basis. A variance column is included to compare the final appropriated budget with the
actual budget results.

Because accounting principles used to present budgetary basis differ significantly from those used to present
financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), a Budget-to-GAAP
Reconciliation can be found immediately following the Budgetary Comparison Schedule. The Budget-to-GAAP
Reconciliation explains the differences between budgetary outflows and GAAP expenditures.
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Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes combining financial statements for: nonmajor governmental funds,
proprietary funds, fiduciary funds and component units that are incorporated into the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSI/S

Net Assets. As presented in the following table, total assets of the State on June 30, 2010, were $5.7 billion,

while total liabilities were $0.9 billion, resulting in combined net assets (governmental and business-type
activities) of $4.7 billion.

State of South Dakota
Net Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total

Activities Activities Primary Government

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current and Other Assets $ 1,764,048 $ 1,624,252 $ 640,465 $ 546,945 $ 2,404,513 $2,171,197
Capital Assets 3,283,671 3,179,405 4,863 2,299 3,288,534 3,181,704
Total Assets 5,047,719 4,803,657 645,328 549,244 5,693,047 5,352,901
Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding 400,790 428,433 127,688 132,281 528,478 560,714
Other Liabilities 350,698 309,109 65,195 9.344 415,893 318,453
Total Liabilities 751,488 737,542 192,883 141,625 944,371 879,167

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 3,211,673 3,101,101 4,863 2,299 3,216,536 3,103,400
Restricted 1,004,704 897,491 2,138 302,713 1,006,842 1,200,204
Unrestricted 79.854 67,523 445 444 102,607 525,298 170,130

Total Net Assets $4296.231  $4,066,115 $452445  $407.619  $4.748,676  $4.473734

The largest component of the State’s net assets, 67.7%, is investments in capital assets (land; land
improvements; land improvements — roads; buildings; equipment; vehicles; infrastructure; and construction in
progress), less depreciation and all outstanding debt that was issued to buy or build those assets. The State
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the State’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Restricted net assets comprise 21.2% of total net assets. These net assets are subject to restrictions either (a)
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws/regulations of
other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation on how they
can be used. The majority of the restricted net assets are restricted for funds held as permanent investments,
either as expendable ($4.7 million) or nonexpendable ($648.6 million). These include the following funds:

e Dakota Cement Trust Fund. This fund consists of the proceeds from the sale of the State
Cement Plant and all investment earnings thereon. Article Xlll, section 21 of the Constitution of the
State of South Dakota states: “Except as provided in Article XIll, section 20 of the Constitution of the
State of South Dakota, the original principal of the trust fund shall forever remain inviolate. However, the
Legislature shall, by appropriation, make distributions from the difference between the twelve million
dollar annual general fund transfer and five percent of the market value of the trust fund for the support
of education, but not for the replacement of state aid to general education or special education, if the
increase in the market value of the trust fund in that fiscal year was sufficient to maintain the original
principal of the trust fund after such distributions. Beginning with fiscal year 2006, the market value of
the trust fund shall be determined by adding the market value of the trust fund at the end of the sixteen
most recent calendar quarters, and dividing that sum by sixteen.” The fund balance in the Dakota
Cement Trust Fund at June 30, 2010 was $211.0 million, an increase of $16.0 million from the previous
year. The increase resulted primarily from investment income. The Dakota Cement Trust Fund
transferred $12.0 million to the General Fund in fiscal year 2010.
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e Health Care Trust Fund. This fund is authorized by State law to make an annual distribution
equal to 4.0% of its market value (less the investment expenses) into the General Fund for health care
related programs. Article Xll, section 5 of the Constitution of the State of South Dakota also states that,
“the Health Care Trust Fund may not be diverted for other purposes, nor may the principal be invaded
unless appropriated by a three-fourths vote of all of the members-elect of each house of the legislature.”
The fund balance in the Health Care Trust Fund at June 30, 2010 was $89.7 million, an increase of $7.4
million from the previous year due primarily from investment income. On an accrual basis, the Health
Care Trust Fund transferred $3.9 million to the General Fund in fiscal year 2010.

e Education Enhancement Trust Fund. This fund consists of monies received from the
Tobacco Settlement Agreement, monies transferred from the Tobacco Securitization Fund, and monies
from the Youth-at-Risk Fund. The fund is authorized by State law to make an annual distribution equal
to 4.0% of its market value (less the investment expenses) into the General Fund for educational
enhancement programs. Article XllI, section 6 of the Constitution of the State of South Dakota also
states that, “the Education Enhancement Trust Fund may not be diverted for other purposes, nor may
the principal be invaded unless appropriated by a three-fourths vote of all the members-elect of each
house of the legislature.” The fund balance in the Education Enhancement Trust Fund at June 30, 2010
was $326.3 million, an increase of $23.8 million from the previous year. The increase resulted primarily
from investment income. On an accrual basis, the Education Enhancement Trust Fund transferred
$14.8 million to the General Fund in fiscal year 2010.

The remaining balance, $525.3 million, is defined by accounting standards as “unrestricted” net assets.
However, much of the unrestricted net assets cannot be used to meet the State’s general ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors as resources because of limitations imposed by federal regulations, bond convents, or
internally by state law. Limitations on unrestricted net assets imposed by federal regulations and bond
covenants include $172.8 million within the Clean Water State Revolving Fund and $132.1 million within the
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. Other federal regulation limitations include, but are not limited to, $17.8
million for unemployment insurance, $8.0 for revolving loan programs, and $6.0 million for health and public
assistance.

Those funds with limitations imposed by State Law include the following:

e General Fund Budget Reserve. The 1991 South Dakota Legislature established a General
Fund Budget Reserve whereas expenditures out of the budget reserve fund shall only be used by
special appropriation (which requires a two-thirds vote of all the members of each branch of the
Legislature) and shall only redress such unforeseen expenditure obligations or such unforeseen
revenue shortfalls as may constitute an emergency pursuant to S.D. Const., Art. Ill, § 1. The balance in
the General Fund Budget Reserve at June 30, 2010 was $43.4 million, which has remained unchanged
from the previous year.

e Property Tax Reduction Fund. The Property Tax Reduction Fund (PTRF) was created to fund
property tax relief in South Dakota. Senate Bill 225, passed during the 1996 legislative session,
provides that the Commissioner of Bureau of Finance and Management may transfer monies available
from the PTRF to the General Fund to provide property tax relief through state aid to education.
Revenues deposited in the PTRF come from three sources: (1) 49.5% of video lottery net machine
income, (2) 60% of the revenue from the 4% tax on the gross receipts of telecommunications services,
which was imposed by HB 1104 passed by the 2003 legislature, (3) 33% share of revenue generated
from the tobacco tax in excess of $35 million; and (4) unobligated cash remaining at the end of a fiscal
year after the transfer into the Budget Reserve Fund, if the amount in the PTRF does not exceed 15%
of the General Fund appropriations in the General Appropriations Act for the previous fiscal year. The
fund balance in the Property Tax Reduction Fund at June 30, 2010 was $68.2 million, a decrease of
$0.3 million from the previous year.
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Changes in Net Assets. The following table summarizes financial information derived from the government-

wide statement of activities and reflects how the State’s net assets changed during fiscal year 2010.

(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Service
Operating Grants and
Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues:
Sales Taxes
Motor Fuel Taxes
Contractors Excise Taxes
Bank Card and Franchise Taxes
Other Taxes
Investment Earnings
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets
Miscellaneous
Total Revenue
Program Expenses:
General Government
Education — Elementary, Secondary
and Vocational Schools
Education — State Support to
Higher Education
Health, Human and Social Services
Law, Justice, Public Protection
And Regulation
Agriculture and Natural Resources
Economic Resources
Transportation
Intergovernmental — Payments to
School Districts
Intergovernmental — Revenue
Sharing
Unallocated Interest Expense
Unallocated Depreciation
Lottery
Clean Water State Revolving
Drinking Water State Revolving
Other
Total Expenses

Excess (Deficiency) Before Transfers
Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets — Beginning
(As Restated)

Net Assets - Ending

Governmental Activities

Business-type

Total Primary Government

Activities

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
$339,669 $307,493 $283,495 $222,165 $623,164 $529,658
1,768,957 1,447,753 50,927 26,272 1,819,884 1,474,025
2,275 2,519 2,275 2,519
663,146 675,652 663,146 675,652
127,807 124,442 127,807 124,442
85,973 71,533 85,973 71,533
16,674 55,260 16,674 55,260
273,535 261,176 273,535 261,176
101,246 (91,586) 101,246 (91,586)
526 919 526 919
36,625 52,288 36,625 52,288
3,416,433 2,907,449 334,422 248,437 3,750,855 3,155,886
146,193 170,900 146,193 170,900
212,919 195,534 212,919 195,534
182,681 196,007 182,681 196,007
1,337,922 1,200,436 1,337,922 1,200,436
241,217 243,805 241,217 243,805
130,943 118,686 130,943 118,686
52,966 45,006 52,966 45,006
457,081 408,482 457,081 408,482
405,947 400,162 405,947 400,162
103,425 99,064 103,425 99,064
19,820 21,514 19,820 21,514
58 58 58 58
35,411 32,767 35,411 32,767
4,455 4777 4,455 4777
5,066 3,253 5,066 3,253
125,993 89,451 125,993 89,451
3,291,172 3,099,654 170,925 130,248 3,462,097 3,229,902
125,261 (192,205) 163,497 118,189 288,758 (74,016)

118,671 120,002 (118,671) (120,002)

243,932 (72,203) 44,826 (1,813) 288,758 (74,016)
4,052,299 4,138,318 407,619 409,432 4,459,918 4,547,750
$4,296,231 $4,066,115 $452,445 $407,619 $4,748,676 $4,473,734
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Governmental Activities:

The State’s net assets for Governmental Activities increased by $243.9 million or 6.0% from its current
operations. This was the result of the net effect of the following: (1) $3.4 billion revenues (an increase from the
prior year of $509.0 million); less (2) $3.3 bhillion expenses (an increase over the prior year of $191.5 million);
and, plus (3) net transfers of $118.7 million (primarily from “transfers in” from the South Dakota Lottery in the

amou

The following two charts illustrate the above program revenues and expenses for Governmental Activities for

fiscal

nt of $119.8 million).

The increase in revenues was primarily due to a $321.2 million increase in operating grants and
contributions (of which $277.8 million was ARRA related) and a $192.8 million increase in investment

earnings.

The increase in expenses was primarily due to a $137.5 million and $48.6 million increases in Heath,

Human and Social Services and Transportation functions of government.

year ending June 30, 2010:

State of South Dakota
Revenues - Governmental Actlvities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Galn on Sale of
Caplial Assets

0.02% Miscallanesous
Investment 1.07%
Eamings
2.96%
QOther Taxes
8.01%
Bank Card and
Franchise Texes T — Charges for
Service
0.-48% 9.94%
Coniractors
Exclse Taxes
2.52%

Motor Fusl Taxes
3.74%

Sales Tax
19.41%

Operating Granis
and Contributions

Capltal Grants 51.78%
and Conirlbutions
0.07%

Teotal Revenues $3,416,433
(Expressed In Thousands)
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State of South Dakota
Expenses - Governmental Actlvities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Education: Elemenbary,
Secondary and
Yocational Schools

6.4T%

Education: Shete
Support ko Unksersties
5.55%

Health, Humen and
Soclal Services
40.65%

Total Expenses $3,291,172
(Expressed In Thousands)
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Business-type Activities:

e Net assets of the business-type activities increased by $44.8 million primarily due to an increase in
assessments in the Unemployment Insurance Fund and capitalization grants from the federal
government in the Clean and Drinking Water State Revolving Funds.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. Some funds are required by law, while others are established internally to maintain control
over a particular activity.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the State’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows and outflows during
the fiscal year and on balances of spendable resources as of fiscal year-end. Such information is useful in
assessing the State’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’'s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. However, this
measure must be used with care because large portions of the balance may relate to internally imposed
limitations, such as statutory language, which could limit resource use (e.g., General Fund Budget Reserve,
Dakota Cement Trust Fund, Health Care Trust Fund, Education Enhancement Trust Fund, and Property Tax
Reduction Fund), unless appropriated by legislative action as defined by State law.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the State’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$1.4 billion, an increase of $115.3 million during the year.

Approximately 65.7%, or $895.0 million of the combined ending fund balances, is reserved to indicate that it is
not available for new spending because it has already been committed (1) to be held as permanent investments
($653.0 million), (2) to pay debt service ($66.3 million), (3) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders for the
prior fiscal year ($51.1 million), (4) for noncurrent assets ($55.6 million), (5) to be held in a permanent trust fund
with earnings distributed to the primary government and universities ($26.3 million), (6) for inventories ($22.5
million) or (7) for State Transportation Infrastructure Bank Projects ($20.1 million).

Approximately 3.2%, or $43.4 million of the combined ending fund balances, is designated as a General Fund
Budget Reserve to indicate that it has been designated through internally imposed limitations to be used only to
address emergency situations without having to raise taxes or cut spending.

The remaining 31.1%, or $423.0 million of the combined ending fund balances, constitutes unreserved fund
balance. However some of this ending fund balance may not be used to meet the State’s general ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors. $332.3 million of this balance resides in special revenue funds that are
intended for specific purposes that may have Federal and/or State statutory imposed limitations that limit the
use of those resources for the intended specific purposes.

The following governmental funds are major funds and had significant impact on the state’s financial position
during fiscal year 2010:

e General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At the end of the fiscal
year, the unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $134.0 million, of which $43.4 million was
designated only to be used to address emergency situations without having to raise taxes or cut
spending (budget reserve). The total fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year was $155.1
million. As a measure of General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both the unreserved fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. The unreserved fund balance (including the
unreserved designated amount) represents 12.0% of the total General Fund operating expenditures,
while the total fund balance represents 13.9% of that same amount.
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The State’s General Fund revenues decreased by $36.9 million (or 3.9%) from the previous fiscal year.
Expenditures also decreased by $41.5 million (or 3.6%). Overall, the fund balance increased by $16.3
million during the current fiscal year. This 11.7% increase from the prior year was due almost entirely to
transfers into the General Fund from the other funding sources.

e Transportation. The total fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year for the Transportation
fund was $141.8 million, an increase of $91.9 million from the prior fiscal year. The increase resulted
primarily from internal spending cuts in operating costs and priority given to the economic stimulus
projects which caused a temporary delay in other construction projects that will require the future use of
State funds.

e Dakota Cement Trust. The total fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year for the Dakota
Cement Trust Fund was $211.0 million, an increase of $16.0 million from the prior fiscal year. The
increase resulted primarily from investment income during the fiscal year.

e Education Enhancement Trust. The total fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year for
the Education Enhancement Trust Fund was $326.3 million, an increase of $23.8 million from the prior
fiscal year. The increase resulted primarily from investment income during the fiscal year.

Proprietary Funds

The State’s proprietary funds are presented on the full accrual basis of accounting and include the State’s
enterprise funds and internal service funds. The following proprietary funds had significant changes to net
assets during fiscal year 2010:

e Lottery Fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Lottery Fund reported total net assets of $7.0
million, an increase of $0.09 million in comparison with the prior year. During the current fiscal year, the
State Lottery produced income (before transfers) in the amount of $119.9 million on total revenue of
$154.6 million, compared to the previous fiscal year's income (before transfers) of $120.6 million on total
revenue of $152.5 million. The increase in revenues was the result of increased sales for online tickets.
During fiscal year 2010, the State Lottery distributed approximately $106.7 million to the Property Tax
Reduction Fund, $6.1 million to the General Fund, $6.8 million to the Capital Construction Fund, and
$0.2 million to the Department of Human Services.

e Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The Clean Water State Revolving Fund program
provides low interest loans to governmental entities for wastewater, storm sewer, and nonpoint source
pollution projects. Projects with compliance or health and safety concerns receive highest priority. At the
end of the current fiscal year, the Clean Water State Revolving Fund reported total net assets of $173.2
million, an increase of $16.5 million in comparison with the prior fiscal year. The increase resulted
primarily from (1) the receipt of $12.5 million capitalization grant monies received from the federal
government and (2) $4.0 million of revenue from investments, interest, and other sources in excess of
operating expenses.

e Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. The Drinking Water State Revolving Fund program
provides low interest loans for drinking water projects. Projects with compliance or health and safety
concerns receive highest priority. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Drinking Water Revolving
Fund reported total net assets of $133.0 million, an increase of $17.1 million in comparison with the
prior year. This increase resulted primarily from (1) the receipt of $16.5 million of capitalization grant
monies received from the federal government and (2) $0.6 million of revenue from investments, interest,
and other sources in excess of operating expenses.
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Budgetary Highlights

The following analysis is based on the Budgetary Comparison Schedules included in the Required
Supplementary Information that immediately follows the basic financial statements.

The original budget is defined as the first complete appropriated budget, adjusted by reserves, transfers,
allocations, supplemental appropriations, and other legally authorized legislative and executive changes before
the beginning of the fiscal year. Any such transaction that is authorized as a legislative or executive change
before the beginning of the fiscal year is included in the original budget, regardless of the effective date of the
document loaded on the accounting system. The original budget also includes any actual appropriation amounts
carried forward by law from prior years, including special appropriations, maintenance and repair, and
carryovers. The final budget is defined as the original budget, adjusted by all reserves, transfers, allocations,
supplemental appropriations, and other legally authorized legislative and executive changes after the beginning
of the fiscal year.

General Fund. The difference between the original and the final amended budget was a $1.5 million
decrease in appropriations. That decrease can be attributed to two separate appropriation areas comprised of
emergency specials and general bill adjustments.

The General Fund had $4.0 million worth of emergency special appropriations during fiscal year 2010 that
consisted of the following:

e $1.8 million appropriation to the Department of Corrections for costs related to the purchase of land in
Rapid City for future facilities.

e $1.0 million appropriation to the Bureau of Administration for costs related to the extraordinary litigation
fund.

e $1.2 million appropriation to the Department of Agriculture for costs related to the suppression of wildfires.

The General Fund had general bill adjustments that decreased the original budget by $5.5 million during fiscal
year 2010 which consisted of the following:

¢ $3.3 million decrease in appropriations to the Department of Human Services for programs in
Developmental Disabilities, the SD Developmental Center, Alcohol and Drug Abuse, Rehabilitation
Services, the Human Services Center, and Community Mental Health.

e $1.0 million decrease in appropriations to the Department of Corrections for programs in Mike Durfee
State Prison, The State Penitentiary, The Women’s Prison and Juvenile Community Corrections.

e $0.7 million decrease in appropriations to the Board of Regents for programs at the University of South
Dakota, South Dakota State University, South Dakota School of Mines and Technology, Northern State
University, Black Hills State University, Dakota State University, South Dakota School for the Deaf, and
South Dakota School for the Blind.

¢ $0.3 million decrease in appropriations to the Department of Education for programs in Educational
Resources.

e $0.1 million decrease in appropriations to the Department of Military & Veteran Affairs for programs in the
Army Guard, Air Guard, and State Veteran’s Home.

The net effect of the emergency special appropriations and the general bill adjustments resulted in a $1.5 million
dollar decrease in General Fund appropriations. Overall, there were no over-expenditures by any State
departments. The difference between the final amended budget and actual spending was $10.1 million below
final budgeted estimates.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The State’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30, 2010, is
$3.3 billion (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land; land
improvements; land improvements — roads; buildings; equipment; vehicles; infrastructure; and construction in
progress.

State of South Dakota
Capital Assets - Primary Government
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Land $ 102,479 $ 100,406 $ 295 $ 295 $ 102,774 $ 100,701
Land Improvements 27,559 22,297 924 924 28,483 23,221
Land Improvements - Roads 596,572 589,010 0 0 596,572 589,010
Buildings 387,686 361,056 4,008 4,008 391,694 365,064
Equipment 156,036 147,101 4,542 1,581 160,578 148,682
Intangible Assets — Software 43,468 41,281 725 725 44,193 42,006
Vehicles 124,829 120,593 0 0 124,829 120,593
Infrastructure 3,250,872 3,136,828 0 0 3,250,872 3,136,828
Construction in Progress 216,372 212,672 0 0 216,372 212,672
Total Capital Assets 4,905,873 4,731,244 10,494 7,533 4,916,367 4,738,777
Accumulated Depreciation (1,622,202) (1,551,839) (5,631) (5,234) (1,627,833) (1,557,073)
Total Capital Assets, Net $3,283,671 $3,179,405 $ 4,863 $ 2,299 $3,288,534 $3,181,704

The most significant capital asset the State reported in fiscal year 2010 was infrastructure assets and related
land, land improvements, and construction in progress. Infrastructure assets are long lived capital assets that
normally are stationary in nature and normally can be preserved for a significantly greater number of years than
most capital assets. Examples of infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, tunnels, drainage systems, water
and sewer systems, dams and lighting systems. Infrastructure assets account for $2.7 billion (net of
accumulated depreciation), which is 81.7% of total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation).

The State’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) increased from fiscal year 2009 to
2010 by approximately 3.4%. The change was primarily due to ongoing construction and completion of
segments of infrastructure - highways, bridges, and railroads. Construction in progress for highways, bridges,
and railroads increased by $59.7 million and decreased (projects completed and capitalized) by $109.9 million.
Land and land improvements increased by $7.3 million which consisted of land purchased by the Department of
Education ($.7 million) and by the Department of Corrections ($0.6 million) and land improvements made by
Department of Transportation ($1.4 million), Department of Military and Veterans Affairs ($2.5 million) and
Department of Game, Fish & Parks ($1.6 million). Building and building improvements increased by $26.6
million. This was largely due to the completion of building improvements for the Camp Rapid Recreation Center
($1.0 million), the completion of the Yankton Armory Upgrades ($0.4 million), the completion of the Herried
Maintenance Shop ($0.8 million), the completion of the Winner Heated Truck Shed ($0.5 million), the completion
of the Becker-Hanson Building 1* Floor Renovations ($0.6 million), the completion of the Lake Area Technical
Institute Automotive Addition ($3.0 million), the completion of the Lake Area Technical Institute Diesel Energy &
Welding Addition ($8.0 million), the completion of the Mitchell Technical Institute Technology Addition ($2.0
million), the completion of the Mitchell Technical Institute Utility Building ($4.0 million), the completion of the
Crawford Hall Radiant Heating Line Replacement ($0.8 million), the purchase of the Rapid City Minimum Unit
($1.6 million) and the completion of the Custer State Park Game Lodge Renovation ($3.1 million). Equipment
assets increased by $11.9 million. This was largely due to the purchase of new equipment and replacing of aged
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equipment by the Department of Transportation ($3.5 million, net of disposals), the Bureau of Administration
($2.1 million, net of disposals), by the Department of Game, Fish & Parks ($0.7 million, net of disposals), by the
Department of Human Services ($1.4 million, net of disposals) and by the SD Lottery Office ($2.9 million, net of
disposals). Intangible assets increased by $2.2 million. This is largely due to new software for the Department
of Transportation ($0.3 million, net of disposals), the Department of Corrections ($0.6 million, net of disposals),
the Bureau of Administration ($0.3 million, net of disposals) and the Department of Revenue ($0.7 million, net of
disposals). Vehicles which include trucks, cars, pickups and other vehicles, increased by $4.2 million largely
due to replacing aged vehicles by the Department of Transportation ($3.6 million, net of disposals) and the
Department of Public Safety ($0.5 million, net of disposals). Construction in progress, not including construction
in progress for highways, bridges, and railroads, increased by $53.9 million. This was largely due to new and
ongoing projects by the Department of Military and Veterans Affairs ($20.8 million, net of projects completed and
capitalized), the Department of Game, Fish and Parks ($0.9 million, net of projects completed and capitalized),
the Bureau of Administration ($2.0 million, net of projects completed and capitalized), the Department of Social
Services ($25.0 million, net of projects completed and capitalized), the Department of Human Services ($2.7
million, net of projects completed and capitalized), and by the Department of Transportation ($1.3 million, net of
projects completed and capitalized).

More detailed information on the State’s capital assets can be found in Notes to the Financial Statements.
Debt Administration

The authority of the State to incur debt is described in Article Xlll, Section 2, of the State’s Constitution.
Generally, the State Constitution prohibits the State from having general obligation indebtedness in excess of
$100,000. General obligation indebtedness of the State is backed by the full faith and credit of the State, and
reported as part of the governmental activities in the State’s basic financial statements.

The South Dakota Building Authority was created and organized by Chapter 5-12 of the South Dakota Codified
Laws. The South Dakota Building Authority issues bonds, certificates of participation, and trust certificates to
finance the cost to acquire, construct, remodel, maintain, and equip buildings and other facilities of State
departments and institutions. These obligations are payable from revenue generated through lease agreements
between the South Dakota Building Authority and other State departments and institutions. The South Dakota
Building Authority is a blended component unit of the State. At June 30, 2010, the uninsured rating was Aa2
from Moody’s and AA- from Standard and Poor's. On March 29, 2011 the Standard and Poor’s rating was
upgraded to AA. The indebtedness, bonds, or obligations incurred or created by the South Dakota Building
Authority may not be or become a lien, charge, or liability against the State. The bonds and all related financial
transactions used to finance buildings of State departments and institutions are reported as part of
governmental activities in the State’s basic financial statements, except for debt of universities, which is reported
as part of the discretely presented component unit information. The South Dakota Building Authority did not
issue any revenue bonds for Governmental Activities. The State incurred no new long-term general
indebtedness under Business Type Activities. The South Dakota Building Authority issued $13.6 million in
Taxable Revenue bonds (Build America Bonds) for Higher Education (a discretely presented component unit).

The Educational Enhancement Funding Corporation (EEFC) is a special purpose corporation, organized by
Chapter 5-12 of the South Dakota Codified Laws. EEFC is an instrumentality of, but separate and apart from the
State. Although legally separate from the State, EEFC is a blended component unit of the State and,
accordingly, is included in the State’s financial statements. At June 30, 2010, the EEFC Series 2002A and
2002B Bonds had a rating of Baa3 from Moody’s and BBB from Standard and Poor’s. Pursuant to a Purchase
and Sale Agreement with the State, the State sold to EEFC its future rights, title and interest in the Tobacco
Settlement Revenues (TSRs) under the Master Settlement Agreement. The purchase price of the State’s future
right, title and interest in the TSRs has been financed by the issuance of the Bonds and the Residual Certificate.
The Residual Certificate represents the right of the State to receive all amounts required to be distributed after
payment of all outstanding bonds and other liabilities of EEFC as set forth in the Trust Indenture. Pursuant to the
resolution, EEFC is prohibited from selling additional bonds, other than refunding bonds. The bonds represent
limited obligations of EEFC, payable solely from and secured solely by the pledged TSRs and the pledged
amounts. The bonds are not a debt or liability of the State or of any political subdivision or agency thereof.
EEFC has no taxing power. During the year, EEFC incurred no new long-term general indebtedness.

The South Dakota Conservancy District issues tax exempt revenue bonds for the Clean Water State Revolving
Fund (CWSRF) and for the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF). These funds provide low interest
loans or other types of financial assistance for the construction of publicly-owned wastewater treatment facilities;
implementation of nonpoint source management programs; and construction and maintenance of drinking water
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facilities respectively. At June 30, 2010, the South Dakota Conservancy District had maintained its long-term
rating of Aaa from Moody’s and AAA from Standard & Poor’s on all outstanding State Revolving Fund Program
Bonds. The South Dakota Conservancy District bonds do not constitute a debt or liability of the State; or a
pledge of the faith and credit of the State.

The bonds are paid solely from CWSRF and DWSRF loan repayments. The tax exempt revenue bonds and
related financial transactions for the CWSRF and DWSRF are reported as part of the business-type activities in
the State’s basic financial statements. During the current fiscal year, the South Dakota Conservancy District
issued Bond Anticipation Notes (BANS) for the CWSRF program with a par amount of $37 million. They were
sold at a premium of $543,160 making the total BANS proceeds equal $37,543,160. The District also issued
BANS for the DWSRF program with a par amount of $18 million. They were sold at a premium of $264,240
making the total BANS proceeds equal $18,264,240. The closing date on all the BANS was 8/26/2009. The
maturity date was 9/30/2010 with an interest rate of 2.0%.

At June 30, 2010, primary government had total notes and bonded debt outstanding as follows:
State of South Dakota

Outstanding Loans and Bonded Debt
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenue Bonds:
South Dakota Building
Authority $ 52,591 $ 61,271 $ 52,591 $ 61,271
Educational Enhancement
Funding Corporation 207,578 219,230 207,578 219,230
South Dakota Conservancy
District 126,509 131,097 126,509 131,097
Trust Certificates:
South Dakota Building
Authority 21,895 24,435 21,895 24,435
Capital Leases: 25,009 29,632 25,009 29,632
Total $ 307,073 $ 334,568 $ 126,509 $ 131,097 $ 433,582 $ 465,665

Additional information on the State’s long-term debt obligations can be found in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Nonfarm employment in South Dakota declined during fiscal year 2010 as the national economic recession
continued to have a negative impact on employment. In fiscal year 2010, nonfarm employment in the State
declined 1.6%, or 6,700 jobs. Although job losses were realized during the fiscal year, employment growth in
South Dakota was better than the national growth rate for the ninth fiscal year in a row. The unemployment rate
in South Dakota remained one of the lowest in the nation in fiscal year 2010. South Dakota’s unemployment rate
was 4.7% in June 2010, while the U.S. unemployment rate was 9.5% the same month. In calendar year 2010,
the most recent annual data that is available, South Dakota’s personal income grew 1.5%

Further information on the South Dakota economy and economic outlook is included in the transmittal letter.
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the State’s finances and to demonstrate the State’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have any questions about this report, or need additional financial information, please contact the Bureau
of Finance and Management, 500 East Capitol Avenue, Pierre, South Dakota 57501, (605) 773-3411.

The State’s discretely presented component units, with the exception of Higher Education and the Value Added
Finance Authority, issue their own separately audited financial statements. These statements may be obtained
by directly contacting the Department of Legislative Audit at 427 South Chapelle, c/o 500 East Capitol, Pierre,
South Dakota 57501, (605) 773-3595.
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| BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS I

The <“Basic Financial Statements” include the Government-Wide Financial
Statements, the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, the Proprietary
Fund Financial Statements, the Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements, and the
accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. The following individual

statements are included:

Government-Wide Financial Statements - Statement of Net Assets
Government-Wide Financial Statements - Statement of Activities
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of
Activities

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds

Notes fo the Financial Statements
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 654,723 $ 165,927 $ 820,650
Receivables (Net) 371,165 384,485 755,650
Due From Component Units 1,131 12 1,143
Due From Primary Government 0
T CTH AL B ST B o 090 RO e Zeosy 0
Investments 671,852 91,778 763,630
Inventory 24,376 2,391 26,767
Deferred Swap Outflow 0
Deferred Fiscal Charges and Other Assets 9,475 1,134 10,609
Restricted Assets:
~ Cash and Cash Equivalents 1T 578 579
Investments 23,422 1,255 24,677
Other 808 808
Capital Assets:
Land and Other Non-depreciable Assets 705,330 295 705,625
lnfrastructure(net) B B B B B A A A P A A A A A R 1 ‘979.238 ‘..979,238
Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 382,731 4,568 387,299
Construction in Progress 216,372 216,372
Total Assets 5,047,719 645,328 5,693,047
Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 300,666 60,794 361,460
Due To Primary Government 0
Due To Component Units 2,039 2,039
Accrued Interest Payable 9,732 2,050 11,782
Deferred Revenue 38,261 2,351 40,612
Fair Value of Interest Rate Swap Agreements 0
Noncurrent Liabilities:
e e Y e e I e TR e
Due In More Than One Year 354,008 120,948 474,956
Total Liabilities 751,488 192,883 944,371
Net Assets
Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 3,211,673 4,863 3,216,536
Restricted For:
Highways 132,696 132,696
Agriculture and Natural Resources 90,420 90,420
¢ PTIN  AR FRY S TS S L S S S S S S S D G S S S S L S S S 4,013
Economic Development 27,112 27,112
Debt Service 56,609 1,330 57,939
Capital Projects 148 148
R R e eeasaeesy G S 2 1‘\006“;
Higher Education - Expendable 0
Higher Education - Nonexpendable 0
Funds held as Permanent Investments
Expendable 4,676 4,676
~ Nonexpendable ]
Interim Lab 0
Sanford Center for Science Education 0
Other Purposes 29,407 808 30,215
Unrestricted 79,854 445 444 525,298
Net Assets $ 4,296,231 $ 452 445 $ 4,748,676

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Component Units

Science and

Housing Technology Higher
Authority Authority Education Nonmajor
$ 284,401 $ 46,983 $ 152,485 $ 2,997
1,598,024 383 146,898 26,413
10 2,029
612,526 261,272 3,595
1,370 1,602 7,538
30,107
14,128 1,341 3,608 56
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ A B
15,982 6,368
220 13,563 32,238
6,610 35,330 475,372
4,723 214,729
2,547,386 103,935 1,361,659 39,440
21,870 1,712 54,253 1,429
30 10 1,103
12,277 3,493 335
19,038 23
30,107
““““ e e s T
1,867,299 149 441,166 25,883
2,110,011 2,020 557,288 29,244
861 53,616 440,683
436,514 4,708 6,379
99,533
270,420
20,211
13,100
13,019
1,969 (10,973) 3,817
$ 437,375 $ 101,915 $ 804,371 $ 10,196
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 146,193 $ 166,457 $ 15,104 $
Education - Elementary, Secondary and Vocational
;;;;;;;; P T e Yy
Education - State Support to Higher Education 182,681 11,639
Health, Human and Social Services 1,337,922 36,758 991,246 1,160
Law, Justice, Public Protection and Regulation 241,217 57,213 84,815
Agriculture and Natural Resources 130,943 64,940 46,713
B S o0 TS fyee R Ay
Transportation 457,081 6,301 370,443 1,115
Intergovernmental - Payments to School Districts 405,947
Intergovernmental - Revenue Sharing 103,425
Unallocated Interest Expense 19,820
UnallocatedDepreCIatlon T I e "—aR
Total Governmental Activities 3,291,172 339,669 1,768,957 2,275
Business-type Activities:
Lottery 35,411 154,669 613
Clean WaterStateRevolvmg “““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““ 4’455: ;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 5,781 S 1 5,185 ;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;
Drinking Water State Revolving 5,066 3,997 18,238
Revolving Economic Development and Initiative 1,540 2,009 1,697
Unemployment Insurance 92,601 87,820 12,971
Second Injury 3,212 3,292 81
State Fair 2,243 1,910 64
‘“E‘ederalSUTDMSIPT‘OD@WTT u‘;;:‘;;:‘;;:‘;;:‘;;:‘;;;;;;;3\;5‘10 ;;;;;;;;;;;; 3,636“‘“‘“‘:‘i‘i‘:‘i‘i‘:‘i“28*\ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Rural Rehabilitation 749 246 221
Prison Industries 2,115 2,402 98
Health Insurance Risk Pool 7,366 5,414 1,214
Professional and Licensing 6,847 6,313 430
R SR g SRR B ——
Other 2,720 3,427 65
Total Business-type Activities 170,925 283,495 50,927 0
Total Primary Government $ 3,462,097 $ 623,164 $ 1,819,884 $ 2,275
Component Units:
Housing Authority $ 122,433 $ 155,745 $ s
2 Sciéhce‘and*TechholdgyfAu‘thbrity‘ ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 13,7 T Sp0IsT
Higher Education 632,396 303,196 176,143 10,427
Nonmajor 1,639 1,582 15
Total Component Units $ 770,223 $ 461,240 $ 196,170 $ 10,427
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Sales Taxes
Motor Fuel Taxes
"Contrac,tor‘s‘ Excise T

Bank Card and Franchise Taxes

Other Taxes
Investment Earnings

Gain on Sale of Capi
Miscellaneous

tal Assets

Additions to Endowments

Transfers

Total General Revenues, Additions to Endowments and Transfers
Changes in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning, as restated

Net Assets - Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expenses) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government Component Units
Science and
Governmental Business-type Housing Technology Higher
Activities Activities Total Authority Authority Education Nonmajor
$ 35,368 $ $ 35368
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; A
(171,042) (171,042)
(308,758) (308,758)
(99,189) (99,189)
;;;;;;; (19,290) (19.290)
“““““ (31"‘035) ST (,“,035) SRR R R R RS eSS S SRR R
(79,222) (79,222)
(405,947) (405,947)
(103,425) (103,425)
(19,820) (19,820)
(58) ey
(1,180,271) 0 (1,180,271)
119,871 119,871
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; S S
17,169 17,169
2,166 2,166
8,190 8,190
161 161
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 69)  (269)
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 0 e
(282) (282)
385 385
(738) (738)
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; (o4 (04
“““““““““““““““““““““““““““ (489')\ (489')
772 772
0 163,497 163,497
(1,180,271) 163,497 (1,016,774)
$ 33312 $ $ $
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; SR
(142,630)
(42)
33,312 6,974 (142,630) (42)
663,146 663,146
127,807
‘ 85973
16,674
273,535
136
15,462
118,671 (118,671)
1,424,203 (118,671) 1,305,532 0 1,961 219,377 136
243,932 44,826 288,758 33,312 8,935 76,747 94
4,052,299 407,619 4,459,918 404,063 92,980 727,624 10,102

$ 4,296,231 $ 452,445 $ 4,748,676 $ 437,375 $ 101,915 $ 804,371 $ 10,196
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)
Social Dakota Education
General Services Cement Enhancement
Fund Transportation Federal Trust Trust
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 109,953 $ 117,230 $ 2934 $ 12,186 $ 17,118
N R e 197950 B
Receivables From:
Taxes (net) 95,331 11,583
Interest and Dividends 2,394 519 2 845 1,536
Other Funds 37,925 1,207 29
e e T e
Other Governments 648 30,486 32,513
Loans and Notes (net) 29
Other (net) 4,079 803 6,031 1,671
sy S -
Deferred Fiscal Charges and Other Assets 840 353 68
Total Assets $ 252,944 $ 178,673 $ 41,577 $ 210,981 $ 341,082
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $ 64,737 $ 31,643 $ 40,246 $ $
Payable To:
Other Funds 7,091 1,169 976 14,803
AR A e D e Y
Other Governments 23,619 3,735 73
Claims, Judgments and Compensated Absences 68 10 14
Deferred Revenue 1,716 270
Total Liabilities 97,878 36,870 41,434 0 14,803
Fund Balances:
Reserved For:
Encumbrances 15,474 10,969 8,036
Inventorles A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A AR R A A A R A R i ,1. ,774 A A R A AR A 15,463 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A AR R A A A R AR R AR
Debt Service
School Perpetuity
Noncurrent Assets 3,856
State Transportation Infrastructure Bank Projects 20,130
Funds held a8 Permanent investments ey 238000 329,330
Unreserved Designated For:
Budget Reserve 43,398
Unreserved Undesignated, Reported In:
General Fund 90,564
Specla[ReVenue Funds TS S LA S G A S AT S AT S AT S AT A S A A 94’241 “““““““““““““ i (7,893) g (2?‘01 9) R (3’051)
Capital Project Funds
Total Fund Balances 155,066 141,803 143 210,981 326,279
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 252,944 $ 178,673 $ 41,577 $ 210,981 $ 341,082

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Total
$ 339,395 $ 598,816
nmBEE 695274
6,226 113,140
2,126 7,422
- 16,388 55,549
R 200200
104,823 168,470
51,768 51,797
16,864 29,448
~~~~~~~~~~ 4,268 22,505
1,345 2,606
$ 719,970 $ 1,745,227
$ 61,997 $ 198,623
20422 53,461
\\\\\\\\\ 1,101 1916
58,517 85,944
128 220
41,662 43,648
192,827 383,812
16667 51,146
~~~~~~~~~~ 4,268 i 22,505
66,345 66,345
26,340 26,340
51,752 55,608
\ 20,130
““““ 85,631 652,961
43,398
- 90,564
TS 275'992 SRR 332,270 ‘
148 148
527,143 1,361,415
$ 719,970 $ 1,745,227
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GREAT FACES. GREAT PLACES.
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and are
therefore not reported in the funds. These assets consist of:

Land and Construction in Progress 921,493
Infrastructure 3,250,871
Other Capital Assets 647,052
Accumulated Depreciation (1,557,714)

Total Capital Assets

Some of the state's revenues will be collected after year-end but are not available
soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and therefore are deferred
in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds. Those liabilities are:

Bonds and Notes (278,045)
Accrued Interest on Bonds (9,732)
Capital Leases (18,276)
Compensated Absences (44,895)
Unclaimed Property (1,593)
Workers Compensation (175)
Net OPEB Obligation (9,740)
Pollution Remediation (8,981)

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 1,361,415

3,261,702

14,694

29,857

(371,437)

$ 4,296,231



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)

Social Dakota Education
General Services Cement Enhancement
Fund Transportation Federal Trust Trust
Revenue:
Taxes $ 863,838 $ 179,540 $ $ $
Licenses, Permits and Fees 8,199 4,131
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 575
US&OfMonevand Pfoﬂertv T 21,002 - 4,72024 ;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 28,330 38,594
Sales and Services 7,995 1,362
Administering Programs 43 262,247 699,346
Tobacco Settlement
Other Revenue 14,375 513 4,800
Total Revenue 916,027 452,513 704,170 28,030 38,594
Expenditures:
Current:
GeneraIGovemment T 27557
Education 19,175
Education - Payments to School Districts 382,904
Education - State Support to Higher Education 171,040
Health, Human and Social Services 341,779 704,067
Agriculture and Natural Resources 14,255
Economic Resources 10,205
Transportation 389,991
State Shared Revenue Paid to Other
GOvemments UUiLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL;1;1;1;1;1;1;1;21"07:1 B
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures 1,114,735 405,130 704,067 0 0
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (198,708) 47,383 103 28,030 38,594
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Pfomeds fl’Om Sale Of Caplta'AsSets e L T s B 32 3 4 .360
Insurance Proceeds
Transfers In 232,592 4,665
Transfers Out (17,612) (3,554) (12,000) (14,803)
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 215,012 2,471 0 (12,000) (14,803)
Net Change in Fund Balances 16,304 49,854 103 16,030 23,791
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year, as restated 138,762 91,949 40 194,951 302,488
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 155,066 $ 141,803 $ 143 $ 210,981 $ 326,279

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Total
$ 123,757 $1,167,135
184,676 197,006
10,731 11,306
;;;;;;;; 30,650 123,020
23,302 32,659
783,923 1,745,559
25,175 25,175
13,749 33,437
1,195,963 3,335,297
;;;;;;;; 43,975 71,532 ‘
207,016 226,191
24,678 407,582
11,641 182,681
319,000 1,364,846
“““ 121,611 263,499
118,428 132,683
42,667 52,872
105,805 495,796
;;;;;;;; 02,354 103,425
2,336 2,336
22,958 22,958
18,550 18,550
1,121,019 3,344,951
74,944 (9,654)
“““““ 3571 4,963
809 809
176,640 413,897
(246,730) (294,699)
(65,710) 124,970
9,234 115,316
517,909 1,246,099
$ 527,143 $ 1,361,415
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Capital Outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over the useful lives as
depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital Outlay
Depreciation Expense
Excess of Capital Outlay Over Depreciation Expense

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets, including
sales, donations and trade-ins is to decrease net assets.

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets. In the current year, these amounts consist of:

Bond Principal Retirement
Capital Lease Payments
Total Long-Term Debt Repayment

Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The net revenue (expenses) of certain activities of internal service
funds is reported in governmental activities.

Because some revenues will not be collected until several months after the state's
fiscal year ends, they are not considered 'available' revenues and are
deferred in the funds. Deferred revenues increased (decreased) by this amount this year.

The issuance of bonds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities.

Bond Issuance and Refunding Costs

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. These activities consist of:

Net (Increase) Decrease in Accrued Interest

(Increase) Decrease in Compensated Absences

(Increase) Decrease in Workers Compensation

(Increase) Decrease in Unclaimed Property

(Increase) Decrease in Net OPEB Obligation

(Increase) Decrease in Pollution Remediation
Total Additional Expenditures

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

41

199,147

(82,996)

22,961
1,657

(357)

(621)

(97)
49
572
(2,924)
1,969

$ 115316

116,151

(8,000)

24,618

(631)

(2,113)

(357)

(1,052)

$ 243,932



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Major Activities
Clean Drinking Internal
Water State Water State Service
Lottery Revolving Revolving Nonmajor Total Funds
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,026 $ 37,391 $ 35,748 $ 84,762 $ 165,927 $ 55,908
Receivables:
Interest and Dividends 80 1,877 1,301 545 3,803 309
OMRSEBURAS: e D g - 7463
Component Units 12 12 931
Other Governments 320 473 696 1,489 121
Loans and Notes (Net) 17,693 11,003 8,920 37,616
Other (Net) 4,836 3,247 8,083 260
e o b b i i e o S AGHE Sgq 95g7
Deferred Fiscal Charges and Other Assets 38 42 92 172 2,850
Total Current Assets 12,942 57,319 48,567 101,004 219,832 68,570
Restricted Assets:
Restricted Cash 42 10 526 578
RSO TeSIaRIE A L g e fogsk s S
Other 808 808
Investments 56,674 35,104 91,778
Capital Assets:
Land and Other Non-depreciable Assets 295 295
e T —_— sgER RS _
Accumulated Depreciation (240) (5,373) (5,613) (64,488)
Construction in Progress 0 209
Total Capital Assets 2,746 0 0 2,117 4,863 21,969
Other Noncurrent Assets 166,210 125,034 43,191 334,435
Total Assets 17,000 280,587 209,650 146,312 653,549 90,539
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 2,350 171 190 1,799 4,510 3,993
Payable To:
Other Funds 7,155 1,078 8,233 1,546
S 557
Escrow Payable 71 71
Bonds, Notes and Leases Payable 40,574 20,539 61,113 3,079
Claims, Judgments and Compensated Absences 126 27 26 1,649 1,828 17,854
‘Ait\:cru\ed:Ihterest\f‘Pa‘yabl‘e‘\ A ‘.\~~137 e 913 ;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; 2050 ;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;
Deferred Revenue 158 2,193 2,351 8,165
Total Current Liabilities 9,860 41,909 21,668 6,719 80,156 34,760
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds, Notes and Leases Payable 65,472 54,926 120,398 3,654
Claims, Judgments and Compensated Absences 113 24 23 390 550 22,268
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 113 65,496 54,949 390 120,948 25,922
Total Liabilities 9,973 107,405 76,617 7,109 201,104 60,682
Net Assets
Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 2,746 2117 4,863 15,236
Restricted For:
Debt Service 384 946 1,330
Other 808 808
Unrestricted 3,473 172,798 132,087 137,086 445,444 14,621
Total Net Assets $ 7,027 $ 173,182 $ 133,033 $ 139,203 $ 452,445 $ 29,857

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Major Activities
Clean Drinking Internal
Water State Water State Service
Lottery Revolving Revolving Nonmajor Total Funds
Operating Revenue:
Licenses, Permits and Fees $ 1,359 $ $ $ 10,997 $ 12,356 $
Use of Money and Property 3,937 2,847 2,053 8,837 1
 Bales B aIGeR s R SRR SR ST 194,256
Administering Programs 12,463 16,557 11,910 40,930 249
Assessments 91,112 91,112
Other Revenue 543 264 860 1,667 1,763
Total Operating Revenue 154,631 18,244 20,554 130,817 324,246 196,269
Operating Expenses:
Personal Services and Benefits 1,459 226 219 8,526 10,430 32,864
Travel 144 10 12 1,007 1,173 647
T SRS SR e R 517506
Supplies and Materials 479 1 2 4,078 4,560 16,128
Other 72 876 1,977 1,025 3,950
Interest 2,963 2,237 5,200 350
o e dgi SR RO 7074
Lottery Prizes 25,519 25,519
Insurance Claims 102,672 102,672 110,730
Total Operating Expenses 35,411 4,455 5,066 125,748 170,680 199,302
Operating Income (Loss) 119,220 13,789 15,488 5,069 153,566 (3,033)
Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses):
Gain on Disposal of Assets 0 192
Loss on Disposal of Assets 0 (41)
I g R S A S s
Other Expense (245) (245) 0
Capital Contribution 0 235
Grant and Other Income 38 1,031 1,069
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) 651 2,722 1,681 4,877 9,931 2,929
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 119,871 16,511 17,169 9,946 163,497 (104)
Transfers:
Transfers In 2,336 2,336 1,838
Transfers Out (119,780) (33) (29) (1,165) (121,007) (2,365)
Net Transfers In (Out) (119,780) (33) (29) 1,171 (118,671) (527)
Change in Net Assets 91 16,478 17,140 11,117 44,826 (631)
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 6,936 156,704 115,893 128,086 407,619 30,488
Net Assets at End of Year $ 7,027 $ 173,182 $ 133,033 $ 139,203 $ 452,445 $ 29,857

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Major Activities
Clean Drinking Internal
Water State Water State Service
Lottery Revolving Revolving Nonmajor Total Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 155,179 $ 1,290 $ 847 $113,158 $ 270,474 $ 74,249
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided 3,222 3,222 121,664
Receipts from Federal Agencies 12,460 16,440 11,953 40,853
Receipts from Loan Payments 16,796 13,834 9,317 39,947
Payments to Suppliers and for Benefits and Claims (7,328) (1,113) (2,454) (115,004) (125,899) (145,721)

_ Payments for Employee Services (1,475) (242) 214)  (8,499) (10,430) (32,761)
Payments for Interfund Services Used (839) (1,577) (2,416) (12,493)
Payments for Lottery Prizes (25,457) (25,457)

Payments for Loans Originated (26,429) (31,738) (5,571) (63,738)
Other Receipts (Payments) (20) 393 169 1 543 435
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating

Activities 120,060 3,155 (3,116) 7,000 127,099 5,373
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing

Activities:

_ Purchases of Capital Assets | (2,900) @1) (2921) (1,758)
Sales of Capital Assets 341
Payments on Capital Lease Obligations (4,913)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related

Financing Activities (2,900) 0 0 (21) (2,921) (6,330)
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:

Transfers In 2,336 2,336 1,837
Transfers Out ) (118,422) (37) (29) (1,165) (119,653) (2,365)

_ Borrowings from Federal Government 24,089 24,089

Repayments to Federal Government (24,089) (24,089)
Issuance of Bond Anticipation Notes 37,000 18,000 55,000
Payments on Bonds and Notes (2,820) (1,815) (4,635)
Interest Payments on Bonds and Notes (2,747) (2,250) (4,997)
Other Noncapital Financing Activities 796 796

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital

Financing Activities (118,422) 31,396 13,906 1,967 (71,153) (528)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Investment Income 650 2,563 1,555 4,254 9,022 2,646
Purchase of Investment Securities (15,104) (9,831) (24,935)

" Proceeds from the Sale and Maturity of e SN 7,075 DA 3,448 G N 10,523 Ty |
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 650 (5,466) (4,828) 4,254 (5,390) 2,646
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash

Equivalents During the Fiscal Year (612) 29,085 5,962 13,200 47,635 1,161
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year (Restated) 8,680 8,316 30,312 71,562 118,870 54,747
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 8,068 $ 37,401 $ 36,274 $ 84,762 $ 166,505 $ 55,908

Continued on next page
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Major Activities
Clean Drinking Internal
Water State Water State Service
Lottery Revolving Revolving Nonmajor Total Funds
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ 119,220 $ 13,789 $ 15,488 $ 5,069 $ 153,566 $ (3,033)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss):
Depreciation/Amortization Expense 186 38 42 210 476 7,074
Interest Expense 2963 5287 5,200 391
Miscellaneous Nonoperating ltems 38 Q] 37 46
Decrease/(Increase) in Assets:
Accounts Receivable 367 (1,584) (1,217) (34)
Interest, Dividends & Penalties Receivable 7 (153) 30 (116)
Loans and Notes Receivable (13,577) (20,597) 3,619 (30,555)
Due From Other Funds (34) (34) 236
Due From Component Units 13 13 175
Due From Other Governments (14) (157) 771 600 28
Inventory ) (598) (598) (4)
Deferred Fiscal Charges and Other Assets 92 920 (695)
Other Restricted Assets (90) (90)
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 327 (35) 19 (485) (174) (842)
Accrued Liabilities 2) (5) 1) 12 4 3
Compensated Absences Payable (14) 11) 6 12 (7) 97
Due To Other Funds (925) (925) (51)
Due To Component Units 101
Due To Other Governments 1 1 173
Deferred Revenue 77) 389 312 (340)
Escrow Payable ] 22 22
Policy Claim Liabilities A7 417 2,048
Other Liabilities 82 (7) 75
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities $ 120,060 $ 3,155 $ (3,116) $ 7,000 $ 127,099 $ 5,373
Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Fixed Assets 149
Capital Lease Obligations Entered Into (1,525)
Transfers In (Out) of Fixed Assets 235

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

Private
Pension Purpose
Trust Trust Agency
Funds Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,832 $ 11,657 $ 59,934
Receivables:
Employer 2,005
RO S
Benefits 68
Unsettled Investment Sales 1,533
Taxes Receivable 33,541
DUeFrOmother Funds o 0 4 8 4 8 4 8 8 0 8 6 8 6 6 8 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 1’09 o
Due From Other Governments 492
Investment Income 16,753 486 46
Other 15 472
Total Receivables 23,534 610 34,551
Investments, at Fair Value:
Fixed Income 1,899,510
Equities 3,355,064
Real B 508,205 R R R R A R A A RS SR \
Private Equity 739,015
Pooled Investment Funds 118,999
Total Investments 6,601,794 118,999 0
Properties, at Cost 60 13,890
Accumulated Depreciation (31)
Other Assets 18 9
Total Assets 6,632,207 145,165 $ 94,485
Liabilities
Payables:
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 3,265 191 $ 9,219
Refunds - Contractors Excise Tax 33,681
Due To Other Funds 63 156
Due To Other Governments ‘ 51,585
Compensated AbsencesPavabIe RN 250 5 5
Securities Sold, But Not Yet Purchased, at Fair Value 78,941
Unsettled Investment Purchases 13,888
Total Liabilities 96,407 347 $ 94,485
Net Assets
Held in Trust For:
Pension Benefits 6,535,800
Individuals and Other Governments 144,818
Total Net Assets $ 6,535,800 $ 144,818

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

46



STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

Private
Pension Purpose
Trust Trust
Funds Funds
Additions
Contributions:
Employee 98,347 $
Employer 96,914
From Clients and Inmates 7,642
Other 7,108

Total Contributions 195,261 14,750

Investment Income:
From Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 875,438 10,350
Interest 99,962

Dmdends -’8,232 R R R R
Real Estate 4175
Pooled Interest and Dividends 4,111

Investment Activity Income 1,057,807 14,461

Less Investment Activity Expenses (39,892)

Net Investment Income (Loss) 1,017,915 14,461
Escheated Property 63
Miscellaneous Income 757

Total Additions 1,213,176 30,031
Deductions
Benefits 329,240
Escheat Distributionhs 30
Refunds of Contributions ‘ 29,148 i
Distributlon to SChOOlDIStﬂCtS R 3,672
Payments made for Trust Purposes 8,754
Administrative Expenses 3,433 5
Total Deductions 361,821 17,461
Net Increase (Decrease) 851,355 12,570
Net Assets Held In Trust
Beginning of Year 5,684,445 132,248
End of Year 6,535,800 $ 144,818

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

B. Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the State of South Dakota reporting entity includes the primary government and its
component units. The primary government consists of state departments, bureaus, boards and commissions. Component
units are legally separate governmental organizations for which the State is considered to be financially accountable and
other organizations for which the nature of their relationship is such that exclusion would cause the State's financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Blended Component Units — Blended component units are legally separate entities that are, in substance, part of the
State’s primary government. The South Dakota Building Authority, South Dakota Conservancy District, Cement Plant
Commission and the Education Enhancement Funding Corporation are considered to be blended component units.

Discretely Presented Component Units — Discretely presented component units are legally separate organizations
that are either financially accountable to the State, or their exclusion would cause the State's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. Discretely presented component units are reported in separate columns or rows in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the State.

The State’s major discretely presented component units are:

South Dakota Housing Development Authority

Science and Technology Authority

Higher Education (Affiliated organizations of Higher Education were excluded from the notes to the financial
statements.)

The State’s nonmajor discretely presented component units are:

South Dakota Value Added Finance Authority
Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP)
South Dakota Economic Development Finance Authority

Related Organizations — The Health and Educational Facilities Authority is excluded from the reporting entity because
the State’s accountability does not extend beyond appointing a voting majority of the organization’s board members.

Separately issued financial statements of the South Dakota Building Authority, Conservation Reserve Enhancement
Program, South Dakota Economic Development Finance Authority, South Dakota Housing Development Authority, and
Science and Technology Authority are available from the Department of Legislative Audit, 427 South Chapelle, c/o 500 East
Capitol, or by calling (605) 773-3595.

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities. The Statement
of Net Assets and Statement of Activities report all nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.
Primary government activities are distinguished between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities
are generally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part
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by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. The focus of the government-wide financial statements and notes
to the financial statements is the primary government. A separate column is presented for each major discretely presented
component unit and a column for all non-major discretely presented component units in the aggregate.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the reporting entity’s nonfiduciary assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as
net assets.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset
by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues
include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function; and, 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included as program revenues are reported as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though
fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements, with nonmajor funds being
combined into a single column.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Nonexchange transactions, in which the State receives value without
directly giving equal value in exchange, include taxes, grants, and donations. Tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year in
which the related sales, income, or activity being taxed occurred. Revenue from grants and similar items are recognized in
the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. Sales tax, motor fuel taxes, bank card taxes, grant revenue, investment income, and charges
for goods and services are all considered to be susceptible to accrual, if collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal year. All other revenue is considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures related
to debt service, compensated absences, capital leases, and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due
and payable.

Proprietary, Fiduciary, and Similar Component Units Financial Statements

The financial statements of the proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and similar component units are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the government-wide financial
statements described above. Proprietary funds include both enterprise and internal service fund types.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition, such as subsidies and investment earnings are
reported as nonoperating.

The State’s proprietary funds follow all GASB pronouncements and those Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements

and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins that were issued on or before
November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with a GASB pronouncement.
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Financial Statement Presentation
The State reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the State’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources, except those required to
be accounted for in another fund.

The Transportation Fund accounts for dedicated state tax revenue for the construction, maintenance, and supervision of
state highways and bridges and federal grants received by the Department of Transportation.

The Social Services Fund accounts for federal grants received by the Department of Social Services to fund social
welfare programs.

The Dakota Cement Trust Fund was created with the proceeds from the sale of the State Cement Plant. Income from
the fund is used to fund general state government and public school districts.

The Education Enhancement Trust Fund accounts for revenue from the tobacco settlement and securitization of future
tobacco revenue. Income from the fund is used to fund education enhancement programs.

The State reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Clean Water State Revolving Fund is used to provide loans to local governments for wastewater, storm sewer, and
nonpoint source pollution control projects.

The Drinking Water State Revolving Fund is used to provide loans to local governments for drinking water projects.
The Lottery Fund accounts for the operations of the State Lottery.

In addition, the State reports the following fund types:
Governmental Funds:

Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific
purposes. Special revenue funds account for federal grant programs, taxes with distributions defined by the State
Constitution or State laws and other resources restricted as to purpose.

Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for the retirement of long-term debt principal and interest.

The Capital Projects Fund administered by the South Dakota Building Authority accounts for resources used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary, fiduciary, or component units
funds.

The Permanent Fund administered by the Department of School and Public Lands accounts for resources that are legally
restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting
government’s programs.

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds report activities for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services. This fund type is also
used when the activity is financed with debt that is secured by a pledge of the net revenues from the fees.

Internal Service Funds report activities that provide goods or services to other funds, departments, or agencies of the
primary government and its component units or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. These goods and
services included information services, telecommunications, insurance risk pools, and fleet and travel management. In the
government-wide financial statements, internal service funds activity is included in governmental activities.
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Fiduciary Funds:

Pension Funds account for resources that are required to be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries of the State’s
defined benefit pension plan and the State Cement Plant defined benefit plan.

Private Purpose Trust Funds account for resources of all other trust arrangements in which principal and income benefit
individuals, private organizations or other governments. The Common School Fund accounts for resources that are legally
restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support local school districts.

Agency Funds report assets and liabilities of resources held for temporary investment and remittance of the resources to
individuals, private organizations, or other governments. Examples of funds in this category include local government tax
collections by the Department of Revenue and Regulation, child support payments collected by the Department of Social
Services and employee payroll withholdings by the State Auditor.

E. Budgetary Accounting

Agencies and departments submit budget requests to the Bureau of Finance and Management. The commissioner approves
the bureau’s budget recommendation that is presented to the Governor for his consideration. The Governor’'s decisions are
presented to the legislature in the Governor’s budget book.

The financial plan for each fiscal year is adopted by the legislature by the passage of a general appropriations act, special
appropriations acts, and deferred maintenance appropriations. The formal budget approved by the legislature does not
include budgeting for revenues and other financing sources/uses.

The general appropriations act includes only appropriations for ordinary current and capital expenses of the executive,
legislative, and judicial branches of the State. State law classifies appropriations into general, federal, and other fund budget
classifications. The budget is controlled at the program level for personal services and operating expenses. Detailed
appropriation information at this level is presented in the Available Funds Report that is available at the Bureau of Finance
and Management.

The State’s annual budget is prepared on the cash basis of accounting. Encumbrance accounting is utilized to reserve a
portion of the budget to future periods for payment of purchase orders, contracts and other commitments. Encumbrances
outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances, since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.
Encumbrances at June 30, 2010 totaled $51,146,000.

F. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets/Fund Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash includes cash on hand, cash in local banks, and cash in the State Treasury. Cash equivalents are valued at cost plus
accrued interest. Cash equivalents include short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash
balances of most state funds are pooled and invested by the State Investment Officer. Investment income is allocated to
participating funds at fiscal year-end. Participating funds are determined by the Bureau of Finance and Management and
approved by the Joint Interim Appropriations Committee of the Legislature.

Investments, as reported on the balance sheet, represent all long-term investments not considered cash equivalents.
Investments include corporate stocks, bonds, convertible debt, U.S. government and agency securities, repurchase
agreements, annuity contracts, investment contracts, international funds, and real estate. Investments are reported at fair
value.

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair values for the fixed income securities are obtained from Bloomberg Financial
Markets, Bank of America, Merrill Lynch, and Citigroup Global Markets. Domestic and Canadian equity security fair values
are obtained from FT Interactive Data, non-Canadian foreign equity security fair values are obtained from Exshare, and spot
foreign currency exchange rates are obtained from Reuters. Investments denominated in foreign currencies and foreign
currency cash balances are translated into U.S. dollars using the year-end spot foreign currency exchange rates. Fair values
of foreign currency forward contracts are obtained from Bloomberg Financial Markets. Fair values of limited partnership
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investments are based on valuations on the underlying companies of the limited partnerships as reported by the general
partner.

For alternative investments where no readily available market value exists, management, in consultation with their investment
managers, values these investments in good faith based upon audited financial statements or other information provided by
the underlying investment managers.

Futures contracts are utilized to adjust the portfolio mix. The fair value of the equity securities futures position is determined
using Standard & Poor's contract data. The fair value of the fixed income futures position is determined by using the U.S.
Treasury note and bond contracts information and the Citigroup Broad Investment Grade Index. Changes in the fair value of
these futures contracts are recognized as gains or losses in the period of change.

Receivables

Receivables in the governmental and business-type activities consist mainly of amounts due from component units, other
governments, loans and customers.

Inventories

Inventories reported in the governmental fund types are reported at cost using the weighted average cost method.
Proprietary fund type inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, using the moving average cost method.
Inventories reported in the Higher Education component unit discrete presentation are reported at cost using the FIFO
method, except livestock inventories, which are reported at June 30, 2010 market price. Inventories are expensed using the
consumption method.

Federal commodities on hand are reported as inventories, offset by deferred revenue. Commodities are reported at fair value
established by the federal government at the date received. At June 30, 2010, the commodities inventory was reported in the
amount of $1,142,000.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and
similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at cost, or estimated historical cost, if original cost records are not
available. Donated property, plant, and equipment are valued at fair market value at the date of donation. Property, plant,
and equipment acquired through capital leases are capitalized at fair market value at the inception of the lease.

All land is capitalized regardless of cost. Land improvements are capitalized when the cost of the improvement is $50,000 or
more. Buildings and building improvements are capitalized when the cost is $100,000 or more. Equipment (including
purchased software licenses) is capitalized when the cost of individual items is $5,000 or more. Infrastructure assets are
capitalized when the cost of the assets is $1,000,000 or more for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, and $50,000 or
more for proprietary funds and component units. Intangible assets such easements, patents, trademarks, internally
generated computer software, etc. (as defined by GASB Statement 51) are capitalized when the cost is $250,000 or more.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an assets life are
not capitalized.

Depreciable capital assets of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Land Improvements 20-30
Buildings and Improvements 15-50
Infrastructure 20-99
Equipment 3-17
Intangible Assets 3-25

The State owns works of art and historical treasures that have not been capitalized and depreciated because the assets
cannot be reasonably valued and/or the assets have inexhaustible useful lives. Works of art and historical treasures include
items such as statues, monuments, historical documents, paintings, artifacts, etc. Higher Education, a business-type activity
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discretely presented component unit, adopted the State’s policy on capitalizing historical treasurers and collections. The
exceptions to this policy are the Memorial Art Center Collection at the South Dakota State University and the Oscar Howe
paintings collection at the University of South Dakota, which were capitalized as of June 30, 1999. The collections are valued
at the historical cost or estimated fair market value at the time of donation. The reported capitalized value of these
collections was $8,230,920 and $375,585, respectively, as of June 30, 2010. All proceeds from the sale of items within these
collections will be used to acquire other items for the collections.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the bonds outstanding method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance
costs, during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Net Assets/Fund Balances

The difference between assets and liabilities is “Net Assets” on the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary funds
financial statements and “Fund Balance” on the governmental fund financial statements. Net assets are reported in three
categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt is a category reported in the government-wide Statement of Net
Assets and consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for
bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted neft assets consist of assets that have externally imposed constraints placed on them by either creditors,
grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments, or constraints imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation of the State.

Unrestricted net assets consist of assets that do not meet the definition of the two preceding categories.

Reservations of fund balances of governmental funds represent amounts that are not available for appropriation. Examples
of fund balance reservations include reserve for encumbrances and reserve for debt service.

Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. The 1991 South Dakota
Legislature established a budget reserve funded from any unobligated cash in the General Fund. The maximum balance of
the budget reserve is 10% of the prior year's General Fund appropriation. The balance in the budget reserve at June 30,
2010 was $43,398,000 and is reported as unreserved designated equity in the General Fund.

G. Compensated Absences

All full-time and permanent part-time employees earn annual leave and sick leave. Employees earn fifteen days annual
leave per year that can be accumulated to thirty days, except for employees with more than fifteen years of employment, who
earn twenty days annual leave per year that can be accumulated to forty days. Upon termination, employees receive
payment for their accumulated annual leave. Employees earn fourteen days sick leave per year. Unless dismissed for
cause, employees who terminate after seven years of continuous employment, receive payment for one-fourth of their
accumulated sick leave balance, not to exceed four hundred eighty hours.

A liability has been recorded in the government-wide and fund financial statements for compensated absences in accordance
with GASB statements.
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H. Lottery Security Deposits

State law requires video lottery operators to furnish security to the Lottery. Security may be in the form of a surety bond,
deposit in cash, an irrevocable letter of credit, or a certificate of deposit issued by a South Dakota financial institution with the
Lottery endorsed on it as a payee. As of June 30, 2010, the amount of certificate of deposits being held by the Lottery was
$461,705 and is included in cash and cash equivalents on the balance sheet. The amount of $5,828,100 was in the form of
surety bonds, deposits in cash, or irrevocable letters of credit and is not reported on the Statement of Net Assets.

1. Interfund Activity and Balances

Interfund activity, as a general rule, has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. An exception to this
rule is activities between funds reported as governmental activities and funds reported as business-type activities. An
example is the transfer of profits from the Lottery Fund to the General Fund. Elimination of these activities would distort the
direct costs and program revenues for the functions concerned.

In the fund financial statements, transfers represent flows of assets (such as goods or cash) without equivalent flows of
assets in return, or a requirement for repayment. In addition, transfers are recorded when a fund receiving revenue provides
it to the fund which expends the resources. An example is securities taxes collected by the Department of Revenue and
Regulation which are deposited into a special revenue fund but are transferred to and expended by the General Fund.

Interfund balances-interfund receivables and payables have been eliminated from the Statement of Net Assets.

2. ACCOUNTING CHANGES, RESTATEMENTS, AND RECLASSIFICATIONS

Restatements-Primary Government

The beginning fund balance for the General Fund, reported as a major governmental fund on the Balance Sheet, decreased
by $13,814,962 for the recognition of a liability as the result of an overpayment of the bank franchise tax by a taxpaying
entity. The beginning net assets reported for governmental activities in the government-wide Statement of Activities
decreased by the same amount.

Restatements-Component Units

The beginning net assets balance reported for Higher Education was increased by $173,000 as a result of reporting
Intangible Assets in accordance with GASB Statement 51 effective for state fiscal year 2010. These assets were not
reported in prior years.

The beginning net assets balance reported for Higher Education was decreased by $1,992,000 for errors in the reporting of
accounts receivable, construction in progress, fixed assets, wages payable, other post-employment benefits, due from
primary government, and other miscellaneous reporting errors in prior years.

Recently Issued Pronouncements

In February 2009, the GASB issued Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This
statement establishes standards for accounting and financial reporting for all governments that report governmental funds.
The requirements of GASB Statement No. 54 are effective for the State’s fiscal year 2011 financial statements.

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession
Arrangements. This Statement provides accounting and financial reporting guidance for service concession arrangement
issues. The requirements of GASB Statement No. 60 are effective for the State’s fiscal year 2013 financial statements.

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 34. This statement modifies certain component unit requirements in the financial reporting entity.
The requirements of GASB Statement No. 61 are effective for the State’s fiscal year 2013 financial statements.

Management has not yet determined the impact that the unimplemented GASB statements will have on the State’s financial
statements.
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3. CASH, DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS

South Dakota Codified Laws (SDCL) and administrative rules authorize the types of deposits and investments. Most State
public funds are invested in the Cash Flow Portfolio using the pooled deposit and investment concept. This concept allows
for the deposit and investment of aggregate idle fund monies, while preserving the integrity of fund cash balances of each
state fund.

Negative cash balances in funds participating in the Cash Flow Portfolio are reclassified at year-end as interfund payables.
The cash and cash equivalents balance in the General Fund was reduced by $9,380,189 for deficit cash balances that
existed in various state funds at June 30, 2010, and is reported as an interfund receivable.

Certain funds and component units have statutory authority to make deposits and investments in specific types of securities,
which may be more or less restrictive than the general authority covering the Cash Flow Portfolio. Additionally, bond
provisions may require restrictions on types of investments. The State was in compliance with legal requirements governing
deposit and investing activities.

A. Primary Government

Investments of the Primary Government are grouped into four categories, based upon investment objectives and risk. The
first category is the Cash Flow Portfolio. This category represents the pooled public funds of the Primary Government
(comprising 77% of the Cash Flow Portfolio) and discretely presented component units (comprising 23% of the Cash Flow
Portfolio). Higher Education and the Science and Technology Authority are discretely presented component units and have
deposits and investments in the Cash Flow Portfolio. Because of the pooled deposit and investment concept of the Cash
Flow Portfolio, the discretely presented component units’ share of the portfolio cannot be broken out separately for risk
disclosure purposes. For risk disclosure purposes, their share of the Cash Flow Portfolio is included in the Primary
Government. The second category is the Retirement Portfolios. This category represents the investments of the South
Dakota Retirement System and the Cement Plant Retirement Fund. The third category is the Trust Portfolios. This category
includes the portfolios of School and Public Lands, Dakota Cement Trust Fund, Education Enhancement Trust Fund and
Health Care Trust Fund. The fourth category is Other Funds. This category represents funds that are not managed by the
South Dakota Investment Council (SDIC) and includes Educational Enhancement Funding Corporation, Clean Water State
Revolving Fund, Drinking Water State Revolving Fund, Building Authority CREP Program and the Vocational Education
Program.

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the State of South Dakota’s
deposits may not be returned to it. Deposits in excess of depository insurance must be 100% collateralized. Collateral is
valued at the lower of cost or market as reported in the quarterly call reports prepared by the qualified public depositories
pursuant to SDCL 4-6A-7. Collateral is required to be segregated by each depository as approved by the South Dakota
Public Deposit Protection Commission. Collateral may not be held in any safety deposit vault owned or controlled either
directly or indirectly by the pledging financial institution but must be deposited for safekeeping in a financial institution that is a
member of the Federal Reserve. At June 30, 2010, pledged collateral for all depositories equaled at least 100% of the total
public deposits in excess of depository insurance. As a result, none of the Cash Flow Portfolio’s certificates of deposit was
exposed to custodial credit.

At June 30, 2010, the Retirement Portfolios had bank balances in foreign currencies in various foreign countries. These
deposits are not collateralized or covered by depository insurance. As a result, the Retirement Portfolios were exposed to
custodial credit risk of $6,399,630.

At June 30, 2010, the Trust Portfolios had bank balances in foreign currencies in various foreign countries. These deposits
are not collateralized or covered by depository insurance. As a result, the Trust Portfolios were exposed to custodial credit
risk of $199,475.

At June 30, 2010, the Other Funds had bank balances that are not collateralized or covered by depository insurance. As a
result, the Other Funds were exposed to custodial credit risk of $884,673.
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Investments

Custodial Credit Risk. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are
in the possession of an outside party. The SDIC has no formal policy for investment custodial credit risk. Collateral
securities in the securities lending program are uninsured and unregistered, with the securities held by the counterparty, or by
its trust department or agent, but not in South Dakota’s name. Due to the suspension of the securities lending program by
the SDIC, no collateral securities were held by the Cash Flow Portfolio, the Retirement Funds, or the Trust Funds at June 30,
2010, which resulted in no custodial credit risk for those funds respectively. The Other Funds, however, had custodial credit
risk totaling $128,089,601 at June 30, 2010.

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. SDIC policy limits or establishes ranges for the durations of the fixed income portfolios held by the various funds.
The Cash Flow Portfolio policy limits average portfolio duration to 2.88 years, and no holding’s maturity can exceed 5 years.
The Retirement Portfolios fixed income portfolio duration must fall between 70% and 130% of the duration of the Citigroup
Broad Investment Grade (BIG) Index. The Trust Portfolios investment-grade fixed income portfolios are benchmarked to the
duration of the Citigroup (BIG) Index. The Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (TIPS) investments have a range of 5 to 10
years to maturity at purchase. The externally managed fixed income assets have duration ranges as specified in their
prospectuses. No formal interest rate risk policy exists for the fixed income portfolios of the Other Funds. The weighted
modified durations (in years) of the various funds are listed in the following table (expressed in thousands):

Cash Flow Portfolio Retirement Portfolios Trust Portfolios Other Funds
Mod. Mod. Mod. Mod.
Investment Type Fair Value Dur. Fair Value Dur. Fair Value Dur. Fair Value Dur.
U.S. Treasuries $ 15,264 2.25 $ 95,854 823 $ 16,825 789 $
U.S. Treasury bills 12,100 22
U.S. Treasury STRIPS 36,885 12.88
U.S. Treasury inflation
protected securities 25,383 2.70
U.S. agencies 177,420 2.21 22,996 4.84 12,626 7.34 12,097 .67
FDIC’s Temporary Liquidity
Guarantee Program 114,113 1.93 22,659 2.30 3,085 2.40
U.S. Government-backed
loans 2,742 10.72
Investment grade corporate 557,554 2.26 357,470 3.78 36,073 4.60
High-yield corporates 152,863 3.63 2,307 4.41
High-yield bond mutual fund 6,135 4.70
Mortgage-backed securities 298,883 2.15 47,266 217
Mutual funds 192,025
Municipal bonds 118,034 5.71
Investment agreements 115,993 15.47
Total $ 864,351 $ 1,191,735 $ 270,476 $ 128,090
Portfolio modified duration 2.20 3.34 4.82 14.07
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Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the
State of South Dakota. SDIC policy establishes a percentage range and a normal allocation to various credit risk categories.
The Cash Flow Portfolio actively managed portion can invest 4% of the portfolio into each corporate security rated Aaa or Aa,
2% in A-rated, 1% in Baa1 or Baa2, and .5% in individual holdings of corporate securities rating Baa3. The maximum
overweight of Baa3 rated holdings versus the benchmark is 5% of the Cash Flow Portfolio. The SDIC sets the investment
policy annually for the Trust Portfolios and the Retirement Portfolios. This policy establishes the average percentage
invested in each asset category and the fund allocation range that each asset category can vary during the fiscal year. No
formal credit risk policy exists for the Other Funds. As of June 30, 2010, the portfolios held the following investments,
excluding those issued by or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government which are not considered to have credit risk. The
investments are grouped as rated by Moody’s Investors Service (expressed in thousands):

Cash Flow Retirement Trust
Portfolio Portfolios Portfolios Other Funds
Moody’s Rating Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
Aaa $ 271693 §$ 455,225 $ 96,985 $ 19,409
Aa 156,693 52,721 86,223
A 378,956 116,955 34,259 76,844
Baa 21,906 139,226 11,953
Ba 94,524 3,651 8,415
B 11,061 369
Caa 1,843 62
P-1 23,422
Unrated 94,003 14,337 33,187
Total $ 829,248 $ 965,558 $§ 247,839 §$ 161,277

Foreign Currency Risk. Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely impact the fair
value of an investment. The Retirement and Trust Portfolios’ exposure to foreign currency risk is derived from their positions
in foreign currency and foreign currency-denominated equity investments. The Retirement and Trust Portfolios do not hedge
foreign currency back to U.S. dollars (to match the unhedged benchmark) but do allow hedging under certain circumstances

when deemed appropriate by the State Investment Officer and portfolio manager.

Retirement Portfolios

The Retirement and Trust Portfolios’
exposure to foreign currency risk at June 30, 2010, are as follows (in U.S. dollar fair value, expressed in thousands):

Trust Portfolios

Equities Fixed Income Cash Equities Cash U.S
U.S.Dollar U.S. Dollar U.S Dollar U.S.Dollar Dollar Fair

Currency Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Total Fair Value Value Total
Australian Dollar $ 4862 $ $ $ 4,862 $ $
Brazilian Real 1,478 14 1,492
British Pound 162,878 181 163,059 16,302 172 16,474
Canadian Dollar 51,224 1,584 52,808 1,592 27 1,619
Danish Kroner 1,405 1 1,406
Euro 239,688 3,653 243,341 29,339 29,339
Hong Kong Dollar 3,440 3,440
Hungarian Forint 193 193
Israeli Shekel 815 815
Japanese Yen 152,737 966 153,703 15,090 15,090
Korean Won 9,668 9,668
Malaysian Ringgit
New Zealand Dollar 780 780
Norwegian Krone 4,166 4,166
Singapore Dollar 103 103
South African Rand 17 1 18
Swedish Krona 1,671 1,671
Swiss Franc 113,881 113,881 11,822 11,822
Taiwan Dollar
Turkish Lira 955 955
Russia

Total Fair Value $ 749,961 $ 0 $ 6,400 $ 756,361 74,145 $ 199 § 74,344
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Investments with limited partnerships and certain global equity investments with outside managers, which are not included in
the table above, may expose the State to additional foreign currency risk. For the Trust Portfolios, the total fair value of
investments in real estate and private equity limited partnerships as of June 30, 2010 was $88,673,268. For the Retirement
Portfolios, the total fair value of investments in real estate and private equity limited partnerships as of June 30, 2010 was
$1,882,5681,086. The total fair value of global equity investments managed by outside managers was $103,406,382. The
total fair value of arbitrage equity investments managed by outside managers was $105,199,097.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss that may be attributed to the magnitude of
a government’s investment in a single issuer. The Cash Flow Portfolio has a policy in place limiting its investments in
individual holdings. Information regarding the Cash Flow Portfolio policy is located in the Credit Risk section. The SDIC does
not have a formal policy in place to limit investments in any particular issuer for the Retirement Portfolios and Trust Portfolios.
Additionally, there are no single issuer exposures (excluding those issued by or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S.
Government, or involving mutual funds or investment pools) within the portfolios that comprise 5% of the overall portfolios at
June 30, 2010.

Derivative Financial Instruments in Primary Government

South Dakota Retirement System. Derivatives are generally defined as contracts whose value depends on, or
derives from, the value of an underlying asset, reference rate or index. The South Dakota Retirement System (SDRS) is
exposed to a variety of derivative products through the investment management of the SDIC and their outside managers.

The SDIC purchases and sells financial and interest rate futures as a means of adjusting the SDRS portfolio mix and as a
lower transaction cost substitute for transactions that would otherwise occur in the underlying portfolios. Futures contracts
outstanding at June 30, 2010 were as follows (expressed in thousands):

Open
Positions Contracts Fair Value
U.S. Treasury note due September 2010 Long 180 $ 332
S&P 500 Index due September 2010 Long 386 (2,799)

A futures contract is a contract to buy or sell units of an index or financial instrument at a specified future date at a price
agreed upon when the contract is originated. The SDIC purchases and sells futures contracts as a means of adjusting the
SDRS portfolio mix at a lower transaction cost than the transactions, which would otherwise occur in the underlying portfolios.
During fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, S&P 500 futures and 10-year U.S. Treasury note futures were utilized. Upon
entering into such a contract, the SDRS pledges to the broker cash or U.S. government securities equal to the minimum
initial margin requirement of the futures exchange. Additionally, SDRS receives or pays a daily variation margin, which is an
amount of cash equal to the daily fluctuation in value of the contract. The net change in fair value from futures contracts for
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was $10,927,539.

The SDIC also enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage foreign currency exposure, as permitted by portfolio
policies. The net change in fair value from foreign currency forward contracts for fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was
$8,492,143.

SDRS is exposed to credit risk on derivative instruments that are in asset positions. The SDIC attempts to minimize credit
risk by entering into derivatives contracts with major financial institutions. At June 30, 2010, the net fair value of foreign
currency forward contracts was $4,499,577. This represents the maximum loss that would be recognized at the reporting
date if all counterparties failed to perform as contracted.

SDRS is exposed to interest rate risk on its 10-year U.S. Treasury note futures contract. As interest rates increase, the value
of the futures contract decreases. The fair value of futures contracts with notionals priced to the 10-year U.S. Treasury note
were $332,110. In addition, the SDRS is also exposed to foreign currency risk on its foreign currency forward contracts
because they are denominated in foreign currencies. The net fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts in U.S.
dollars is $4,499,577.
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Cement Plant Retirement Fund. The South Dakota Cement Plant Retirement Fund is a unit pension trust fund.
Investment portfolio management is the statutory responsibility of the SDIC. The SDIC purchases and sells financial, interest
rate and commodity futures as a means of adjusting the plan’s portfolio mix and as a lower transaction cost substitute for
transactions that would otherwise occur in the underlying portfolios. Futures contracts outstanding at June 30, 2010 were as
follows (expressed in thousands):

Open
Positions Contracts Fair Value
10 Year US Treasury Note Long 1 $ 123

The Cement Plant Retirement Fund also held mortgage-backed securities in the form of GNMAs and FNMAs. The fair value
of these securities as of June 30, 2010 was $2,247,475. The SDIC is using this investment to enhance fixed returns.

Trust Portfolios. The School and Public Lands, Dakota Cement Trust, and Health Care Trust fixed income portfolios
invest in mortgage-backed securities in the form of GNMAs and FNMAs. The fair value of these securities as of June 30,
2010 was $15,440,664, $21,835,941, and $9,989,159, respectively. These securities are sensitive to prepayments by
mortgagees, which is likely in declining interest rate environments, thereby reducing the fair value of these securities. The
SDIC invests in mortgage-backed securities to diversify the portfolio and increase the return while minimizing the extent of
risk. Details regarding the interest rate risks for these investments are included with the interest rate risk disclosures.

B. Component Units
Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the component unit's deposits
may not be returned to it. The component units do not have deposit policies for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2010 the
component units had deposits that were not collateralized or covered by depository insurance in the amount of $463,475.

Investments

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the component
unit will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The component units do not have investment policies for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2010, investments in the
amount of $7,687,798 were uninsured and unregistered, with the securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust
department or agent, but not in the component unit’'s name.

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The component units have limits on the maturities of investments for their restricted accounts. Investments of
the Capital Reserve accounts must provide for the purposes thereof as estimated by the Authority. The investments must not
mature later than the final maturity of the related Series of the Bonds. The average duration of individual securities will not
exceed twenty years. Investments of the Mortgage Reserve accounts must provide for the purposes thereof as estimated by
the Authority.

The duration of fifty percent of individual securities will not exceed two years from the date of purchase or deposit. The
Housing Development Authority assumes that its callable investments will not be called. The Housing Development Authority
invests in mortgage pass-through securities issued by GNMA, FNMA and FHLMC. Because prepayments of mortgages
underlying these securities affect the principal and interest payments received by these securities, these securities are
considered highly sensitive to interest rate risk.

The Economic Development Finance Authority limits the maturities of investments for its restricted accounts (all accounts
other than the General Account) to terms of two years or less from the date of the investment.
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As of June 30, 2010, component units had investments maturing as follows (expressed in thousands):

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1t0 5 6 to 10 Greater than 10

U.S. Treasuries bills $ 145970 $ 145970 $ $ $

U.S. Treasuries notes 115,928 87,599 6,582 21,747

U.S. Treasury strips 60 60

U.S. agencies 322,609 17,669 141,884 38,902 124,154

Mutual funds 151,243 150,846 397

State Obligations 108,778 2,201 2,936 3,250 100,391

Investment agreements 9,325 3,595 737 4,993
Total $ 853913 § 320,281 $ 233,613 $ 48,734 § 251,285

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. It is the
investment policy of the Housing Development Authority to invest in securities limited to direct general obligations of the U.S.
Government, U.S. Government agencies, direct and general obligations of any state within the United States, mutual funds
invested in securities mentioned above and investment agreements secured by securities mentioned above. The State
obligations were rated Aa and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service. U.S. Government agencies are rated Aaa by Moody’s
Investors Service. Investment agreements are unrated, however, the underlying collateral pledged against them are invested
in direct obligations of the U.S. Government and U.S. Government agencies. Mutual fund investments are rated Aaa by
Moody’s Investors Service. Investments issued by or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government are not considered to
have a credit risk.

The investment management policy of the Economic Development Finance Authority limits investments in corporate bonds to
those rated in either of the two highest rating categories by either Moody’s Investors Service or Standard & Poor's
Corporation.

As of June 30, 2010, the Housing Development Authority, Economic Development Finance Authority and the Board of
Regent’s investments had the following ratings (expressed in thousands):

Moody’s Rating Fair Value

Aaa $ 461,497
Aa 2,479
A 6,504
Unrated 108,098
Total Fair Value $ 578,578

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a
government’s investment in a single issuer. The component units place no limit on the amounts that they may invest in any
one issuer. As of June 30, 2010, the following issuers held 5 % or more of the Housing Development Authority’s
investments: Federal Home Loan Bank (11.83%), Federal National Mortgage Association (10.62%), Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation (11.02%) and South Dakota Housing Development Authority (11.92%).
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Derivative Financial Instruments in Component Units

South Dakota Housing Development Authority. The Authority has entered into interest rate swap agreements in
connection with issuing variable rate mortgage revenue bonds. The intentions of the swaps are to create synthetic fixed rate
debt at a lower interest rate than achievable from long-term fixed rate bonds and to achieve the Authority’s goal of lending to
low and moderate-income first-time home buyers at below market fixed interest rates.

Swap Terms. The terms, including the fair values and counterparty credit ratings of the outstanding swaps as of June 30,
2010, are contained in the table below. The initial notional amounts of the swaps match the principal amounts of the
associated debt. The Authority has purchased the right to terminate the outstanding swap balances at par value on dates that
are generally 10 years after the date of issuance of the related bonds (expressed in thousands).

Current Swap Counterparty
Notional Effective Fixed Variable Rate Termination Credit Fair
Bond Series Amount Date Rate Received Date Rating* Value
Merrill Lynch Capital Services
2003 C-1 $ 26,500 6/18/04 3.40% 57% of LIBOR 5/01/2013 A2 $ (1,717)
plus 0.42%
2005 D 6,925 4/13/05 3.29% 57.3 % of LIBOR 5/01/2015 A2 (581)
plus 0.40%
2007 | 34,000 10/16/07 4.14% 63.8% of LIBOR 5/01/2038 A2 (3,977)
plus 0.30%
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
2004 G 33,000 10/20/04 3.90% 63.4% of LIBOR 5/01/2034 Aa1l (2,333)
plus 0.29%
2005 C 41,000 4/13/05 3.93% 63.3% of LIBOR 5/01/2035 Aa1 (3,215)
plus 0.30%
2008 F 34,000 9/4/08 3.85% 63.7% of LIBOR 05/03/2039 Aa1 (3,283)
plus 0.31%
UBS AG**
2003 F 13,000 6/21/05 3.76% 63.8% of LIBOR 5/01/2034 Aa3 (662)
plus 0.29%
2003 | 28,000 6/21/05 3.76% 63.8% of LIBOR 5/01/2034 Aa3 (1,419)
plus 0.29%
2004 C 34,000 6/21/05 3.75% 63.8% of LIBOR 5/01/2034 Aa3 (1,851)
plus 0.29%
Bank of America, N.A.
2009 C 22,000 11/18/09 3.14% 64.0% of LIBOR 5/01/2039 Aa3 (808)
plus 0.22%
Merrill Lynch Derivative Products, AG.
2005 G 25,000 7/19/05 3.77% 63.8% of LIBOR 5/01/2035 Aa3 (1,673)
plus 0.29%
2006 C 45,000 6/14/06 4.42% 64% of LIBOR 5/01/2037 Aa3 (5,418)
plus 0.29%
2008 C 48,380 3/26/08 3.42% 63.7% of LIBOR 5/01/2039 Aa3 (2,593)
plus 0.30%
MPB 2008 A 7,320 8/2/08 3.55% 63.8% of LIBOR 05/01/2048 Aa3 (577)
plus 0.20%

* Moody’s Investors Service
**Swaps were novated to The Bank of New York, Mellon, on July 22, 2010

The fair values presented above were estimated by the Authority’s counterparty to the swaps. The valuation was determined
by calculating the difference between the present values of each fixed cash flow to be paid and each floating cash flow to be
received by the Authority based upon the current market yield curve. The present value factors for each cash flow are based
on the implied zero coupon yield curve determined by current market rates. Additionally, the values of the call options are
determined by calculating the present value of each predicted option outcome, whose interest rate prediction variance is
determined by current market implied volatility. Together these calculations determine the current fair value of the Authority’s
swap contracts. The fair values in the table above represent the termination payments that would have been due had the
swaps been terminated as of June 30, 2010. A positive fair value represents money due the Authority by the counterparty
upon termination of the swap, while a negative fair value represents money payable by the Authority.
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Swap Risks

Credit Risk. The terms of the swaps expose the Authority to potential credit risk with the counterparty upon the occurrence
of a termination event. The fair value of a swap represents the Authority’s current credit exposure to the counterparty with
which the swaps were executed. The Authority has credit risk exposure to its counterparties when the swap positions have a
positive value.

Basis Risk. The Authority incurs the potential risk that the variable interest payments on its bonds will not equal the
variable interest receipts from its swaps. This basis risk exists because the Authority pays the actual variable rate on its
bonds, but under the terms of its swaps receives a variable rate based upon the one-month, taxable LIBOR rate. Basis risk
will vary over time due to inter-market conditions. For the year ended June 30, 2010, the weighted average interest rate on
the Authority’s variable rate debt associated with swaps was 2.25% per annum, while the weighted average interest rate on
the swaps was 2.173% per annum. In order to reduce the cumulative effects of basis risk, the variable rate determination
structure for interest receipts within the swap is based upon a regression analysis of the long-term relationship between
variable tax exempt rates and the one-month, taxable LIBOR rate.

Termination Risk. The Authority’s swap contracts are based upon the International Swap Dealers Association Master
Agreement, which includes standard termination events. The swap contracts may be terminated by either party if the other
party fails to perform under the terms of the contract. Upon termination, a payment is due to one party irrespective of
causality based upon the fair value of the swap. The potential termination risks to the Authority are the liability for a
termination payment to the counterparty or the inability to replace the swap under favorable financial terms. To reduce the
Authority’s termination risk, the swap contracts limit the counterparty’s ability to terminate due to the following Authority
actions or events: payment default, other defaults that remain uncured for 30 days after notice, bankruptcy and insolvency.

Amortization Risk. The Authority may incur amortization risk because prepayments from the mortgage loan portfolio
may cause the outstanding amount of variable rate bonds to decline faster than the amortization of the swap. To ameliorate
amortization risk, call options were structured within the swaps to enable the Authority to manage the outstanding balances of
variable rate bonds and notional swap amounts. Additionally, the Authority may terminate the swaps at market value at any
time.

Tax Risk. The structure of the variable interest rate payments the Authority receives from its swap contracts are based
upon the historical long-term relationship between taxable and tax-exempt short-term interest rates. Tax risk represents a risk
that may arise due to a change in the tax code that may fundamentally alter this relationship. The Authority has chosen to
assume this risk because it was not economically feasible to transfer to the swap counterparty.

Swap Payments and Associated Debt. As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments
will vary. Debt service requirements of the variable-rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain
the same for their term, were as follows using rates as of June 30, 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Year End Variable-Rate Bond Interest Rate
June 30 Principal Interest Swap — Net Total

2011 $ 80 $ 1,181  § 13,068 $ 14,329
2012 80 1,181 13,066 14,327
2013 90 1,181 12,941 14,212
2014 90 1,180 12,324 13,594
2015 95 1,180 12,321 13,596
2016-2020 535 5,895 60,784 67,214
2021-2025 665 5,883 60,536 67,084
2026-2030 41,275 5,725 58,777 105,777
2031-2035 279,600 4,180 43,807 327,587
2036-2040 74,615 481 5,420 80,516
2041-2045 1,535 38 306 1,879
2046-2049 1,085 8 60 1,153
Total $ 399,745 3 28,113 $ 293410 $ 721,268
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4. DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

A. Receivables - Net

The line “Receivables, Net” reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets consisted of the following (expressed

in thousands):

Governmental Activities

Social Dakota
Trans- Services Cement Education Non-major Internal
General portation Federal Trust Enhancement Governmental Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Trust Fund Funds Funds Total

Taxes Receivable $ 103,989 $ 11,604 $ $ $ $ 6,443 $ $122,036

Allowance (8,658) 21) (217) (8,896)
Accounts Receivable 5,190 1,164 6,031 1,671 19,890 260 34,206

Allowance (1,111) (361) (3,026) (4,498)
Due From Other

Governments 648 30,486 32,513 104,823 121 168,591
Interest Receivable 2,394 519 2 845 1,536 2,126 309 7,731
Current Loans and

Notes 29 4,571 4,600

Allowance (368) (368)
Non-current Loans and
Notes 47,625 47,625

Allowance (60) (60)
Due From Fiduciary
Funds 23 112 63 198
Receivables, net $ 102,475 $ 43,420 $ 38,546 $ 845 $ 3,207 $ 181,919 $ 753 $371,165

Business-type Activities
Clean Drinking
Water State Water State Non-major
Lottery Revolving Revolving Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total

Accounts Receivable 4,855 $ $ $ 6,542 11,397

Allowance (19) (3,295) (3,314)
Due From Other Governments 320 473 696 1,489
Interest Receivable 80 1,877 1,301 545 3,803
Current Loans Receivable 17,693 11,003 9,229 37,925

Allowance (309) (309)
Noncurrent Loans Receivable 165,746 124,536 45,388 335,670

Allowance (2,197) (2,197)
Due From Fiduciary Funds 21 21
Receivables, net 4,916 $ 185,636 $ 137,313 $ 56,620 384,485

65



B. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

The line “Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities” reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets
consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

Governmental Activities

Social
Services Non-major Internal
General Transportation Federal Governmental Service
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Total
Payroll and Withholdings $ 10,172 $ 4,058 $ 1,467 $ 8,666 $ 1,968 $ 26,331
Accounts Payable 10,958 27,585 4,446 42,858 2,025 113,847
Bank Tax Refund 25,975
Medicaid Claims 17,065 34,332 10,473 61,870
Due to Other Governments 2,917 3,735 73 41,702 48,427
Shared Revenue Distribution 20,702 16,815 37,517
Claims Payable 12,576 12,576
Due to Fiduciary Funds 54 2 42 98
Total $ 87,843 $ 35,378 $ 40,320 $ 120,556 $ 16,569 $ 300,666
Business-type Activities
Clean Drinking
Water State Water State Nonmajor
Lottery Revolving Revolving Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Payroll and Withholdings 97 $ 12 $ 11 $ 512 $ 632
Accounts Payable 1,749 159 179 1,287 3,374
Due to Fiduciary Funds 12 12
Escrow Payable 71 71
Claims Payable 1,201 1,201
Notes Payable 37,000 18,000 55,000
Other Liabilities 504 504
Total 2,421 $ 37,171 $ 18,190 $ 3,012 $ 60,794
5. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
The composition of interfund balances at June 30, 2010 is as follows (expressed in thousands):
A. Interfund Receivables and Payables
Due From
Non-
Trans- Social Education Non-Major major
General portation Services Enhancement  Governmental Lottery Enterprise Internal
Due To Fund Fund Federal Fund Fund Fund Funds Service  Fiduciary Total
General Fund $ $ $ 3 $ 14,803 $ 18,121 $ 1,111 $ 1 $ 7 $ 23 $ 34,069
Transportation Fund 6 508 693 1,207
Social Services Fund 29 29
Non-major Governmental
Funds 920 65 288 3,908 5,969 923 109 112 12,294
Non-major Enterprise
Funds 24 4 15 143 132 21 339
Internal Service Funds 2,049 1,100 663 2,765 75 142 605 63 7,462
Fiduciary Funds 54 1 42 12 109
Total $ 3,047 $ 1,169 $ 976 $ 14,803 $ 25,516 $ 7,155 $ 1,078 $ 1,546 $ 219 $ 55,509

Interfund receivables and payables are recorded for: 1) interfund goods or services provided or other reimbursable
transactions occurring between funds; 2) year-end entries eliminating deficit cash balances in funds as described further in
Note 3; and, 3) other payables existing between funds.
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Advances between funds also existed at June 30, 2010 which are not shown in the above table. These are amounts owed
between funds that are not due within one year. In fiscal year 2010, advances include $3,856,000 from the General Fund to
the Parks and Recreation Fund, reported as a non-major governmental fund, for improvements to Custer State Park, and
$4,094,000 from the Energy Conservation Fund, reported as a non-major governmental fund, to the General Fund and the
Veteran’s Home Fund reported as a non-major governmental funds for energy conservation projects.

B. Interfund Transfers

Transferred To

Non-major Non-major Internal
General Transportation Governmental  Enterprise Service
Transferred From Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds Total
General Fund $ $ 84 $14,638 $1,133 $1,757 $ 17,612
Transportation Fund 3,554 3,554
Dakota Cement Trust Fund 12,000 12,000
Education Enhancement Trust Fund 14,803 14,803
Non-major Governmental Funds 197,620 4,562 43,264 1,203 81 246,730
Lottery Fund 6,142 19 113,619 119,780
Clean Water State Revolving Fund 33 33
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 29 29
Non-major Enterprise Funds 7 1,158 1,165
Internal Service Funds 2,020 345 2,365
Total $232,592 $ 4,665 $176,640 $2,336 $1,838  $418,071

Transfers are used to: 1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that statute
or budget requires to expend them; 2) move receipts restricted for debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the
debt service funds as debt service payments become due; and, 3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

In fiscal year 2010, $182,618,000 of State appropriations was used to support state-run universities, which are reported
under Higher Education, a component unit. The amounts are reported as expenditures in the Governmental Fund Balance
Sheet and as expenses in the governmental activities column of the Statement of Activities. They are reported as revenues
in the component unit’'s column of the Statement of Activities.

67



6. CAPITAL ASSETS

A. Primary Government

Capital Assets consisted of the following for fiscal year 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Governmental Activities

Capital Assets not Being Depreciated:
Land
Land Improvements
Land Improvements - Roads
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Intangible Assets - Software
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Intangible Assets - Software
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net
Total Governmental Activities, Net

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Deletions Balance
100,406 $ 5,325 $ 3,252 102,479
6,279 6,279
589,010 7,562 596,572
212,672 131,113 127,413 216,372
908,367 144,000 130,665 921,702
16,018 5,262 21,280
361,056 30,268 3,638 387,686
147,103 11,590 2,657 156,036
41,279 4,267 2,078 43,468
120,593 8,237 4,001 124,829
3,136,828 129,786 15,742 3,250,872
3,822,877 189,410 28,116 3,984,171
5,698 1,567 729 6,536
137,631 11,883 2,085 147,429
82,044 10,472 2,847 89,669
27,972 5,239 1,004 32,207
69,652 8,655 3,580 74,727
1,228,842 52,924 10,132 1,271,634
1,551,839 90,740 20,377 1,622,202
2,271,038 98,670 7,739 2,361,969
3,179,405 $ 242,670 $ 138,404 3,283,671
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Business-type Activities

Capital Assets not Being Depreciated:
Land
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Intangible Assets - Software
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Intangible Assets - Software
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net
Total Business-type Activities, Net

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

$ 295 $ $ 295

295 295

924 924

4,008 4,008

1,581 2,961 4,542

725 725

7,238 2,961 10,199

514 25 539

2,838 69 2,907

1,196 285 1,481

686 18 704

5,234 397 5,631

2,004 2,564 4,568

$ 2,299 2,564 $ $ 4,863

Depreciation was charged to the function of government as follows:

Governmental Activities
Unallocated
General Government
Health and Human Services
Law, Justice, and Public Protection
Agriculture and Natural Resources
Transportation
Education
Economic Resources

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Amount

$ 58
9,818

2,337

7,281

2,886

67,339

924

97

$ 90,740

$ 397
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B. Component Units

Capital Assets for Component Units consisted of the following for fiscal year 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Beginning
Balance Ending
(Restated) Additions Deletions Balance
Higher Education:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land $ 13,246 $ 6,857 $ $ 20,103

Construction in Progress 149,018 150,783 85,072 214,729

Works of Art and Historical Treasures 8,050 555 8,605
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 170,314 158,195 85,072 243,437
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Land Improvements 49,600 4,165 53,765

Buildings 496,682 96,580 593,262

Equipment and Other Assets 201,653 14,724 3,344 213,033
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 747,935 115,469 3,344 860,060
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:

Land Improvements 22,931 1,269 24,200

Buildings 204,943 14,953 219,896

Equipment and Other Assets 148,302 11,662 2,789 157,175
Total Accumulated Depreciation 376,176 27,884 2,789 401,271
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 371,759 87,585 555 458,789
Total Higher Education Capital Assets, Net 542,073 245,780 85,627 702,226
South Dakota Housing Development Authority:

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land 220 220
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 220 220
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Land Improvements 1,100 111 1,211

Buildings 4,478 471 4,949

Equipment 3,227 216 85 3,358
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 8,805 798 85 9,518
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:

Land Improvements 317 57 374

Buildings 83 126 209

Equipment and Other Assets 2,187 223 85 2,325
Total Accumulated Depreciation 2,587 406 85 2,908
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 6,218 392 6,610
Total Housing Authority Capital Assets, Net 6,438 392 6,830
Science and Technology Authority:

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land 1,534 1,534

Underground Mine 10,749 1,210 11,959

Archive Materials 70 70

Construction in Progress 1,293 3,443 13 4,723
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 13,646 4,653 13 18,286
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Buildings 26,371 3,945 36 30,280

Equipment 4,569 1,659 18 6,210

Vehicles 50 29 79

Infrastructure 573 573
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 31,563 5,633 54 37,142
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings 625 569 3 1,191

Equipment 235 345 580

Vehicles 5 8 13

Infrastructure 12 16 28
Total Accumulated Depreciation 877 938 3 1,812
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 30,686 4,695 51 35,330
Total Science and Technology Authority Capital Assets, Net 44,332 9,348 64 53,616
Total Discretely Presented Component Units, Net $ 592,843 $ 255,520 $ 85,691 $ 762,672
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C. Construction in Progress

The State has entered into contracts for the renovation and construction of buildings, structures, and infrastructure (highway
projects). Constructions in progress at June 30, 2010 are as follow (expressed in thousands):

Amount
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
Land Improvements $ 986
Buildings and Structures 50,576
Equipment 530
Intangibles — Computer Software 52,321
Infrastructure 111,959
Total Primary Government $ 216,372
Discretely Presented Component Units
Higher Education
Land Improvements $ 24,622
Buildings and Structures 190,107
Science and Technology Authority
Buildings and Structures 210
Infrastructure 4,513
Total Discretely Presented Component Units $ 219,452

7. RETIREMENT PLANS

South Dakota Retirement System, Plan Description: The South Dakota Retirement System (SDRS) is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer, hybrid defined benefit plan for employees of the State and its political subdivisions. The SDRS provides
retirement, disability and survivor benefits. Authority for establishing, administering, and amending plan provisions is found in
SDCL 3-12. The SDRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements, footnote disclosures,
and required supplementary information. The SDRS is considered part of the State of South Dakota financial reporting entity
and is included in the State’s financial report as a pension trust fund. Copies of the separately issued financial report may be
obtained by writing to the SDRS, P.O. Box 1098, Pierre, SD 57501-1098, or by calling (605) 773-3731.

As of June 30, 2010, the number of participating governmental employers was:

School Districts 170
State of South Dakota 1
Board of Regents 1
Municipalities 147
Counties 64
Boards and Commissions _87
Total Employers 470

The SDRS financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to governmental accounting for a pension trust fund. Revenue
is recorded when earned and expenses recorded when incurred. Employee and employer contributions are recognized when
due pursuant to formal commitment as well as statutory requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Investments are carried at fair value to properly reflect the asset values of the fund at June 30, 2010. Fair values were
determined based on closing market prices at June 30, 2010 for those securities traded on national and international stock
exchanges and at the average of bid-and-asked quotations for those securities traded in the over-the-counter market. For
alternative investments where no readily ascertainable market value exists, management, in consultation with their
investment advisors, values these investments in good faith based upon the investment’s current financial statements or
other information provided by the underlying investment advisor. The value of foreign securities in foreign currency amounts
is expressed in U.S. dollars at the closing daily rate of exchange. Purchases and sales are recorded as of the trade date.
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The equity securities include common stocks, preferred stocks, convertible debentures, arbitrage securities, and equity
international funds. The fixed income securities include U.S. government and government-backed bonds and corporate
bonds.

Foreign exchange rate gains and losses are included with the net appreciation in fair value in investments. Futures contracts
are marked to market based on quoted futures prices with changes in fair value reflected in the current period.

Interest and dividends are accrued in the period they are earned.
Contributions: Covered employees are required by state law to contribute a percentage of their salary to SDRS as follows:

Class A members - 6%
Class B Judicial members - 9%
Class B Public Safety members - 8%

All participating employers are required to contribute an amount equal to the member’s contributions. Members may make
an additional contribution of 1.2% of compensation for optional spouse coverage.

Contributions for all participating employers during fiscal year 2010 totaling $195,261,327 ($98,347,135 employee and
$96,914,192 employer) were made in accordance with statutory rates. The primary government and its discretely presented
component units’ share was $71,403,352 ($35,717,196 employee and $35,686,156 employer). These contributions represent
100% of current year covered payroll for all participating units. The employee contributions exceed the employer
contributions because of optional spouse coverage contributions and employee service purchase payments. The employer
contributions for all participating employers for fiscal years 2009 and 2008 were $94,244,915 and $89,766,090 respectively.

SDRS is funded by fixed member and employer contributions at a rate established by state law. On an annual basis, an
independent actuarial valuation of SDRS is made to determine the adequacy of the fixed contractually-required contributions
to pay the normal cost, expenses and amortize the frozen unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The June 30, 2010 actuarial
valuation of the plan determined that the contractually-required employer contributions equal the requirements for the annual
required contribution of the employers under GASB Statement No. 25.

SDRS allows participating entities to pay their deferred contributions for funding of accrued benefits over periods of up to 20
years and members to pay for the purchase of certain prior service over periods of up to 10 years. Interest is charged at
rates of 5% to 8%. As of June 30, 2010, deferred contribution payments will be received as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Year Ending
June 30 Employees
2011 $ 452
2012 333
2013 274
2014 205
2015 14
Later 29
1,307
Less interest -
Total $ 1,307

South Dakota Cement Commission Retirement Plans: The South Dakota Cement Commission (SDCC) administers the
South Dakota Cement Pension Trust Fund. The Fund consists of six defined benefit pension plans that cover all former
employees of the State Cement Plant. The plans are noncontributory, single-employer, public employee retirement plans.
The plans are actuarially funded, using the entry age normal, level percent of pay, funding method. The plans’ funding
policies provide for the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to be amortized as a level dollar over an open 20-year period.

The retirement plans are frozen as to new participants, final average earnings, credited service, and primary social security
benefits. The normal retirement age is 65, and early retirement is at age 55, with required credited service. The plans
provide disability benefits to those former employees totally and permanently disabled on or before March 16, 2001. A
survivor benefit will be paid to a surviving spouse provided: a) the spouse has dependent children; or, b) the surviving spouse
has attained the age of 65; or, c) the employee had purchased the surviving spouse coverage option. Plan contributions are
established by Administrative Rules of South Dakota.
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Copies of a separately issued financial report on the plans may be obtained by writing to the South Dakota Department of
Legislative Audit, 427 South Chapelle, c/o 500 East Capitol, or by calling (605) 773-3595.

The Funds’ financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Benefits are recorded when payable by
administrative rule.

Investments are carried at fair value which is based on the quoted market price of each investment traded on stock
exchanges. For alternative investments where no readily ascertainable market value exists, management, in consultation
with their investment advisors, values these investments in good faith based upon the investment’s current financial
statements or other information provided by the underlying investment advisor. Interest and dividends are accrued in the
period they are earned. The unrealized appreciation or depreciation in the current value of the investments held at June 30,
2010 and the realized gain or loss on sales of investments during the period then ended are determined using the average
cost of the investments. At June 30, 2010 the fair value of net assets held in trust for pension benefits was $39,167,240.79.

Department of Labor Employment Security Retirement Plan: Employees of the Department of Labor hired prior to July
1, 1980 had the option to become a member of the SDRS, or maintain membership in the Employment Security Retirement
Plan. The Employment Security Retirement Plan is a defined benefit single employer plan administered through a private
insurance carrier.

Financial statements are not available from the insurance company. The latest actuarial information available is as of July 1,
2010. The following actuarial information covers all employees of the active life plan, plus any cost-of-living increases
granted to retired life plan participants after January 1, 1987.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 (most recent actuarial valuation date), the payroll and contributions for employees
covered by the plan was $1,407,433 and $20,566, respectively. On June 30, 2010 participants in the plan consisted of the
following:

Active Participants 36
Vested Terminated Participants 4
Retired Participants and Beneficiaries 216

Investments are carried at fair value to properly reflect asset values at June 30, 2010. Contributions are made by active life
plan participants at 5% of their salaries. As of July 1, 2010, the plan is underfunded by $3.4 million, based on the actuarial
assumptions used. The primary reason for this increase is an asset gain of $2.9 million due to returns more favorable than
expected (actual 13.92% vs. 7.5% expected). This gain was offset by a demographic loss of approximately $0.3 million due
to less retiree deaths than expected offset by lower salaries and COLA than expected.

The following table shows the recommended contribution for plan year ending June 30, 2010:

l. Recommended employer contribution, before test of unfunded liability

(a) Total normal cost $ 18,994
(b) Expected employee contributions (15,413)
(c) Employer normal cost (a)-(b) 3,581
(d) 25-year amortization payment toward unfunded actuarial liability 464,455
(e) Interest to June 30, 2010 on (c)+(d) 35,103
() Recommended employer contribution, before test of unfunded

liability: (c)+(d)+(e), but not less than $0 $ 503,139

Il. Test of unfunded liability

(9) Unfunded actuarial liability

(i) Actuarial liability as of July 1, 2009 $_ 54,143,558
(i) Actuarial value of assets as of July 1, 2009 (48,578,014)
(iif) Unfunded actuarial liability: (i)-(ii) 5,565,544
(h) Interest to June 30, 2010 on (c)+(g) 417,684
(i) Expected unfunded liability as of June 30, 2010:
(c)+(g)*(h), but not less than $0 5,986,809
lll.  Recommended employer contribution: lesser of (f) and (i) $ 503,139
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The GASB No. 27 annual pension expense is defined as the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) plus one year’s interest on
the Net Pension Obligation (NPO) offset by an adjustment to the ARC. The ARC may be defined as the recommended
annual employer contribution as developed above. The NPO is defined as the cumulative difference, including interest, for
the years prior to the transition date (July 1, 1997) between (a) the employer’s required contributions in accordance with the
plan’s actuarially determined funding requirements and (b) the contributions made by the employer in relation to the required
contributions. The following table displays the development of the NPO and the annual pension cost assuming that there will
be no employer contributions.

() (b) (c) (d) (e) U] (9) (h)

Annual
Fiscal Year Required ARC Annual Pension Change in NPO
Ended Contribution Employer Intereston  Adjustment  Amortization Cost NPO Balance
30-Jun (ARC) Contribution NPO LY (h)/(e) Factor (a)+(c)-(d) (f)-(b) LY+(g)
2010 $503,139 $0 $0 $0 11.147 $503,139 $503,139 $503,139

The schedule of funding progress (expressed in thousands) is as follows:

Entry Age Assets in Excess
Actuarially Normal Assets Of AAL as a
Fiscal Year Net Assets in Accrued Percent Annual Excess Annual Percent of
Ended Available Liability Funded of AAL Covered Covered Payroll
June 30 For Benefits (AAL) (1/I(2) (1)-(2) Payroll (4)/(5)
2001 $ 56,174 $ 45,540 123.4% $ 10,634 $ 2,948 360.7%
2002 57,914 46,442 124.7 11,472 2,957 388.0
2003 56,633 47,386 119.5 9,247 2,758 335.3
2004 62,477 48,597 128.6 13,880 2,717 510.8
2005 66,065 49,885 132.4 16,180 2,698 599.8
2006 69,259 52,534 131.8 16,725 2,254 7421
2007 76,357 53,395 143.0 22,962 2,010 1,142.2
2008 68,209 54,703 124.7 13,506 1,696 796.6
2009 48,578 54,144 89.7 (5,566) 1,631 (341.2)
2010 51,550 54,930 93.8 (3,380) 1,407 (240.2)

8. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The State of South Dakota maintains a deferred compensation plan for the benefit of its employees created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan is available to all employees of the State and its political subdivisions.
The plan permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years, thereby deferring taxation on the portion
deferred. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, unforeseeable
emergency, or an in-service distribution.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights held by the deferred compensation plan, at all
times until made available to a participant or the participant’'s beneficiary, shall be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
participants. The State has no liability for losses under the plan.

The assets of the deferred compensation plan are not included in the accompanying financial statements because the assets
are remitted to a third-party who administers and markets the plan for the participants.
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9. SPECIAL PAY PLAN

The Special Pay Plan (SPP) was established in July 2004 as a qualified plan pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section
401(a) under the administrative responsibility of the South Dakota Retirement System Board of Trustees. South Dakota state
government and the South Dakota Board of Regents are participating units and every state political subdivision may become
a participating unit in the plan. The plan mandates that qualifying employees (over age 55 and $600 or more in “special’ pay)
of participating units defer one hundred percent of their special lump-sum termination pay to the plan. The participating unit
transfers the deferred pay to the fund. This deferred pay is available to a participant immediately after termination or upon
later retirement, or to beneficiaries or an estate upon the participant's death.

Of the $19,448,990 net assets available for plan benefits at June 30, 2010, $11,014,372 was held in trust for employees of
the State while the remaining $8,434,618 represents the assets held in trust for employees of other jurisdictions. The assets
of the special pay plan are not included in the accompanying financial statements because the assets are remitted to a third-
party who administers and markets the plan for the participants.

10. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The State of South Dakota implemented GASB Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” (GASB 45) during the year ended June 30, 2008.

Plan Description: In accordance with Administrative Rules 55:03:04 other postemployment benefits (OPEB) are available
to health plan retirees that are receiving a retirement benefit from the South Dakota Retirement System. In order to receive
an SDRS benefit, the retiree must be at least age 55 with three years of service. Certain Public Safety employees qualify for
SDRS at age 45 with three years of service.

Pre-Medicare retirees are eligible to be covered under the same medical plans that are provided to active employees as
authorized by SDCL 3-12A-2 until the age of 65. However, retirees must contribute towards the cost of this coverage based
on the contribution scale determined by the South Dakota Bureau of Personnel. Dependents at the time of retirement can
continue to be covered during retirement for as long as they are eligible as dependents under the plan and contribute towards
the cost of the coverage. Although the retirees generally must pay 100% of the premium rate, GASB 45 requires that
employers recognize the Implicit Rate Subsidy that exists in postretirement medical plans provided by governmental
employers.

The Implicit Rate Subsidy refers to the concept that retirees under the age of 65 (i.e. not eligible for Medicare) generate
higher claims on average than active participants. When a medical plan is self insured or fully insured through a third-party
administrator, a premium is usually determined by analyzing the claims of the entire population in that plan and adjusting for
administrative costs. The resulting premium is called a blended premium because it blends the claims of active and retired
participants. Since individuals generally have more and higher claims as they get older, the blended premium paid for
retirees is lower than their expected claims. Another way of considering this is that if the retirees were removed from the
plan, the premium for the active group would be lower; therefore, the retirees’ premiums are being subsidized by the active
group. Since the employer generally pays a large portion or all of the premiums for the active group, this subsidy creates a
liability for the employer. The difference between the expected claims for the retiree group and the blended premium is
called the Implicit Rate Subsidy.

The State operates an agent multiple defined employer retiree benefit plan which provides medical insurance benefits for

retirees. There were 708 retirees as of July 1, 2009. The State has a self-insured health plan with the choice of three
different deductibles for the participants to choose from.

Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of the plan participants are established by the Bureau of Personnel. The
State currently finances the retiree benefit plan on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The state’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined
in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.” The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a thirty year amortization period
using a 3.0% discount rate. For year ending June 30, 2010, the state’s ARC is $8,389,683.

The following table shows the components of the state’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount contributed to the plan,
and the changes to the state’s net OPEB obligation. Because Higher Education is a discretely presented component unit that
contributes 36% of the revenue for active employees 36% of the Net OPEB Obligation was reported by Higher Education.

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 8,389,683
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) 314,565
Amortization Adjustment to ARC (519,342)
Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 8,184,906
Contributions (3,451,962)
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) 4,732,944
NOO, Beginning Balance 10,485,515
NOO, Ending $ 15,218,459

The state’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to this plan, and the net OPEB obligation for
FY 2008, FY 2009 and FY 2010 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Percentage of Annual Net OPEB

Ended June 30 Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2008 $9,429,305 37.2% $5,924.549
2009 $7,560,788 39.7% $10,485,515
2010 $8,184,906 42 2% $15,218,459

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of July 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial
accrued liability (AAL) for benefits and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $70.5 million. The actuarial value
of assets is zero as no assets have been deposited into an irrevocable OPEB trust for future benefits. The covered payroll
for active employees was $626.4 million and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 11.25%.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumption about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
schedule of funding progress presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the plan as understood by the employer and the plan
members and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value
of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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As of the July 1, 2009 actuarial valuation date, the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method was used. The actuarial
assumption included a 3.0% discount rate based on the estimated long-term investment yield on the general assets of the
State. The annual medical trend rate is assumed to grade from 7.67 percent to 5.0 percent in 2013 and to remain at that
level for all future years. This trend curve reflects current general medical trend and an assumption that trend rates will
gradually lower over the next 5 years.

Mortality rates are from the 1995 Buck Mortality Table for males and females.
The UAAL is being amortized on an open, level dollar basis over 30 years.

The following is a schedule of funding progress:

Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Value of Accrued Unfunded AAL Funded Covered Pavroll Percentage of
Valuation Assets Liability (UAAL) Ratio y Covered
(ALL)* Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b) - (a) (a) / (b) (c) [(b) - (a)]/ (c)
7/1/2007 $0 $76,406,237 $76,406,237 0% $591,271,605 12.92%
7/1/2008 30 $67,080,768 $67,080,768 0% $617,186,072 10.87%
7/1/2009 30 $70,548,028 $70,548,028 0% $626,434,784 11.25%

* The projected unit credit actuarial cost method is used to calculate the actuarial accrued liability and the annual required
contribution.
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11. COMMITMENTS

Construction and Other Commitments: At June 30, 2010 the Department of Transportation had contractual
construction commitments of $289,354,261 for various highway projects and maintenance commitments (including stockpile) of
$8,315,128. Financing for these future expenditures will be primarily from approved federal grants and highway use taxes.

The Department of Environment and Natural Resources had construction and other contractual commitments of
$175,048,341 for various water development projects. Financing for these future expenditures will be from approved federal
grants, legislative appropriations, and a bond issue. These commitments relate to the following funds/programs:

Clean Water State Revolving Fund $76,128,338

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund  $66,288,335

Water and Environment Fund Program $24,415,160

Federal Funds $ 8,216,508

The Building Authority has contracts and other construction commitments of $38,510,751.

The South Dakota Housing Development Authority had commitments to purchase home-ownership mortgage loans
aggregating approximately $62,090,657. Financing for these commitments will be from home-ownership mortgage bonds.

The Department of Tourism and State Development had construction and other contractual commitments of $72,233,548.
Financing for these future expenditures will be from approved federal grants, bond issuances, from a previous 1% sales tax,
and an employer's investment in South Dakota's future fee. These commitments relate to the following funds/programs:

Revolving Economic Development Initiative (REDI) Fund Grants/Loans
Value-Added Agriculture Sub Fund $ 345,768
REDI Fund Loans $ 10,560,847
SD Economic Development Authority $ 325,000

Economic Development Finance
Authority, Agriculture Processing

and Export Program (APEX) $ 117,000
Economic Development Finance

Authority, Pooled Loans $ 17,105,000
Community Development Block

Grant (CDBG) $ 11,760,313
Future Fund Program $ 5,119,104
Energy Program Loans $ 2,023,621
Energy Program Grants $ 24,876,895

The South Dakota Science and Technology Authority had a contractual commitment of $1,540,000 for the Homestake Mine
for the installation and maintenance of a deep level pump system and had contractual commitments of $711,750 to install a
new decant pipeline from Homestake’s property to the Mill Reservoir.
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12. SELF-INSURANCE

A. Workers’' Compensation Benefits and Unemployment Insurance

Various funds accumulate assets to cover risks that the State incurs in its normal operations. The State (rather than an
insurance carrier) assumes the risk associated with claims of state employees for unemployment compensation benefits.
"Premiums" charged to state funds to cover the costs of claims servicing and claims payments are based on a percentage of
wages paid to state employees. Related transactions are accounted for in the State Unemployment Compensation Fund.

The State is self-insured for workers' compensation through the creation of reserves derived from a percentage of wages
paid to state employees. This activity is accounted for in an internal service fund. Claims payable for workers’ compensation
is reported using an actuarial estimate based on historical experience that includes actual claims submitted as well as claims
incurred, but not reported. Allocated claim adjustment expenses (those relating to a specific claim) are included in the
determination of claims payable. Unallocated claim adjustment expenses are not included. Estimated recoveries on
unsettled and/or settled claims reduce claims liability and are considered in the actuarial estimate. The claims liability is
funded as claims are paid resulting in an actuarially determined unfunded liability of $14,630,000 at June 30, 2010. The
Workers’ Compensation Fund liability at June 30, 2010 and the changes to the liability during fiscal years ended June 30,
2010 and 2009 listed on the following page were as follows (expressed in thousands):

FY2010 FY2009

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at beginning of fiscal year $18,115 $13,247
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses

Provision for insured events of current fiscal year 3,728 4,123

Changes in provision for insured events of prior fiscal years 673 4,210
Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 4,401 8,333
Payments

Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of current fiscal year 865 1,306

Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of prior fiscal year 2,483 2,159
Total payments 3,348 3,465
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at end of fiscal year $19,168 $18,115
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B. Health and Life Insurance

The State (rather than an insurance carrier) assumes substantially all risk associated with claims of covered public
employees for health insurance and life insurance benefits (an insurance carrier, however, provides claims administration
services for health insurance). The health and life insurance programs are accounted for in the Self-Insurance Fund,
reported as an internal service fund. "Premiums" are charged to state funds for all covered employees. Employees may
purchase varying levels of health and/or life coverage for their spouses and/or dependents. Claims payable for health
insurance is reported using an actuarial estimate based on historical experience that includes actual claims submitted as well
as claims incurred, but not reported. Allocated claim adjustment expenses are included in the determination of claims
payable. Unallocated claim adjustment expenses are not included. Estimated recoveries on unsettled and/or settled claims
reduce claims liability and are considered in the actuarial estimate. Claims expenses and liabilities for life insurance are
reported using a case-by-case review of claims. Allocated claim adjustment expenses are uncommon and immaterial.
Unallocated claim adjustment expenses are not included. At the end of fiscal year 2010, $725,000 of the net assets balance
in the Self-Insurance Fund was designated for future catastrophic losses relating to life insurance. The health and life
insurance programs liability at June 30, 2010 and the changes to the liability during fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and
2009 were as follows (expressed in thousands):

Health Insurance Life Insurance
FY2010 FY2009 FY2010 FY2009

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at beginning of fiscal year $ 10,387 $ 10,582 $ 124 $ 639
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 91,426 83,457 2,164 2,812
Payments:
Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of

current fiscal year 80,076 73,070 2,144 2,688
Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of

prior fiscal years 10,387 10,582 124 639
Total payments 90,463 83,652 2,268 3,327
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at end of fiscal year $ 11,350 $ 10,387 $ 20 $ 124

C. Public Entity Pool for Liability

The State is insured through a Public Entity Pool for Liability Fund (PEPL), reported as an internal s<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>